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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—EB-MFE —T—=F —E—=—F —T——F ZIZE-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E3) (&%)
Results E
Year ended BEZ=A=+—H
31 March IEFEE
Loss attributable AREHEE AE(E
to owners of the E518
Company (52,291) (78,395)  (293,621)  (266,228) (1,153,701)
Assets and BERARE
liabilities
At 31 March MR=A=+—8H
Total assets BEHBE 985,596 1,222,622 1,492,708 1,033,933 1,234,062
Total liabilities BEMRE (302,995)  (450,221)  (546,375)  (144,792)  (196,466)
Total equity VT AR R 682,601 772,401 946,333 889,141 1,037,596

XAEIRREBRA A

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Financial Review
Consolidated results

The turnover and loss of Culture Landmark Investment
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2014 were approximately HK$224 million and HK$61
million respectively as compared to the turnover and
loss of HK$230 million and HK$83 million respectively
of last year. The loss for the year ended 31 March
2014 is primarily attributable to (i) drop in the turnover,
particularly in the exhibition-related business and property
sub-leasing business; (ii) increase in administrative and
operating costs and expenses, in particular as a result
of the recognition of an expense related to the share
options granted under the share option scheme of the
Company; and (iii) absence of non-recurring gain in the
license fee collection business for the year under review
(a non-recurring gain of approximately HK$41 million
was recorded for the same period last year arising from
the step acquisition of joint ventures and the bargain
purchase of 20% interests in the registered capital
of Tian He Wen Hua Group Holdings Limited* (X &
X b EHBR A A )as a result of the conclusion of an
arbitration proceeding between Shenzhen Hua Rong
Sheng Shi Investment Management Company Limited*
CRYITTERBE TR EEEFR 2 F )and China Culture
Development Digital Technology Co., Ltd.* (3t ;R & X
BHFRIBBERATF)). The loss recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is less than the loss recorded for
the corresponding year ended 31 March 2013 due to a
gain of approximately HK$79.4 million recorded on the
disposal of Dynasty Hotel during the year under review.
As the Group continues to operate in a highly challenging
environment, the business in property sub-leasing,
collection of copyright fees in respect of karaoke music
products in the People’'s Republic of China (“PRC"),
exhibition-related business, restaurant operation and
entertainment business will be slightly affected.

EHEERAR
HHERE
BLEM

XA B E AR AR ARR D) R HH
BArAl(SiBAEEDBEE_T-—NF=
A=T—BIEFEZEXBREBESOR
224,000,000 7T &% 61,000,000 7T » M &
£ 8% Bl 5230,000,0007% 7T & 83,000,000
BL -BEZT—NF=A=1+—AHLEFE
ZEBDEFEZARNEEE Y BFARE
ERAEBERYMESTRER  (NVTTHRREE
RAREREN  FHEEABERRERA
AIRBRE R ERREZABERST - &
(IR EEFE  TESTEEAREEK
AT W (K R H B AR YT Fh R
HREERER AT RIE AP XEHFTR K
ERARZHHEER  WEESELKWES
ERaEEBEERGEXIEEEEGR AR
MEARZ20% EamFTE £ 2 FETFHERZEL
41,000,000 % 70) FrEk - AR EIRES E A H &
EBESFUEE479,400,0008 7T - HE
E-E-—MF=ZA=+—HALFEHEFZE
BEREBE_ZT—=4=-ZA=1+—HI1HE
FEZEE BRAEEEETHEEM
ZERIMTEE  MWESHER - WERE
ARZEFE([HE])FH OKELEMREE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Review
Licence fee collection business

The Group engages in the collection of licence fees for
karaoke musical works from karaoke operators in PRC.

The Group also engages in the provision of copyright
licence fees settlement and collection services for
karaoke music products and videos in PRC, and the
provision of intellectual property enforcement services in
respect of karaoke music products in PRC in return for
service fees to be collected from karaoke box.

For the period under review, the business recorded a
turnover of HK$87 million and a loss of HK$21 million.
The loss was mainly attributable to the amortisation of
intangible assets and deferred expenditure to copyright
holders during the period.

Property development and investment

As at the date of this report, the Group entered into
7 sets of Memorandum of Understanding in relation
to the real property investment projects. Among all,
the Company entered into a formal sale and purchase
agreement with Bliss Zone Limited (“BZL") on 1
August 2013 to acquire the entire issued share capital
of Longisland Tourism Investment & Development
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Longisland Group”)
for a total consideration of HK$400 million (of which
HK$150 million by cash and the remaining balance by
the issue of convertible bonds to BZL or its nominee
upon completion). The transaction was approved by the
Company’s shareholders on 7 November 2013.

XA R EAR AR

| CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Review (Continued)
Property development and investment (Continued)

Longisland Group holds a land development project
located in Chanba Ecological District of Xi‘an City, PRC*
(PR EBEEER)("Xi'an Project”) with a total land area
of approximately 105,498 square metres and a planned
aboveground floor area of approximately 267,663 square
metres. The Xi‘an Project includes both commercial and
residential constructions. Details of the Xi‘an Project and
the convertible bonds were disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 1 August 2013 and circular dated
23 October 2013.

The Directors are optimistic with the future outlook of
property development market in PRC and will continue to
explore attractive investment opportunity to strengthen
the Group’s business in property development and
investment.

Exhibition-related business

China Resources Advertising & Exhibition Company
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “CRA Group”) are
principally engaged in exhibition-related business. The
CRA Group has acted as an organiser and contractor for
exhibitions and meeting events held in Hong Kong. It
has developed over 20-year relationship with the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council (“HKTDC"”) and has
become one of the major agents organising trade fairs
for Mainland China groups whilst most of which were
co-organised by the HKTDC. The client base consists
of companies and organizations from PRC including
numerous sub-councils of the China Council for the
Promotion of International Trade in PRC. Overall, the
exhibition-related business contributed a turnover
of approximately HK$66 million to the Group (2013:
HK$78 million), including a turnover of HK$56 million
generated from “the Fashion Week"”, a function co-
organised by the HKTDC. This business recorded a net
loss of approximately HK$3 million after taking into
account the amortisation of intangible assets of HK$3
million. The Directors are of the view that the exhibition-
related business will gradually improve and continue
to contribute positive cashflow to the Group in the
foreseeable future.

XKEERAIRE)

Bl (#&)
WERRRKE (&)

EESERE — AR EELMEBLERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Review (Continued)
Entertainment business

Baron Productions and Artiste Management Company
Limited, a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company,
engages in the provision of services relating to
production and artist management in the entertainment
industry. During the period under review, it incurred a
loss of approximately HK$0.4 million.

As at the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group holds
45.95% interest in China Media and Films Holdings
Limited ("CMF"), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). CMF and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in artist management, film
distribution and production. During the year under
review, the share of loss of associate was approximately
HK$7 million. Following the placement of 100,000,000
new ordinary shares under a general mandate on 3
April 2014, the Group's interests in CMF was diluted
to approximately 38.37%. On 24 April 2014, CMF
conditionally agreed to place up to 300,000,000 new
ordinary shares under a specific mandate (“"CMF
Placement”) and the CMF Placement was duly approved
by the shareholders of CMF in a special general meeting
on 10 June 2014. Following the completion of CMF
Placement, the Group’'s interests in CMF was further
diluted to approximately 25.66%.

On 14 February 2014, Wave High International Limited
("Wave High"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement with Mr. Chan Siu
Kei to dispose of the Group’'s 60% interests in Chance
Music Limited (“CML") at a consideration of HK$9.5
million and the gain on disposal was approximately
HK$9.2 million.

The Directors are reviewing the business strategies of
the entertainment business.

XA WIRRE AR A A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Review (Continued)
Food and beverages

The Group operates Golden Island Bird's Nest (Chiu
Chau) Restaurant (“HK Restaurant”) at Jaffe Road, Hong
Kong and a wine bar and restaurant known as Zhuhaishi
Ziyuxuan Wine Company Limited* (" ¥k /& 1 & # & 8
¥AM/AR") in Zhuhai, PRC. Owing to high operating
costs and keen competition in the industry, it is within
the Directors’ expectation that the operation of the
restaurant shall remain challenging and that the Company
decided to cease the operation of HK Restaurant in July
2014. For the year ended 31 March 2014, the business
contributed to the Group a turnover of HK$3 million and
incurred a loss of HK$11 million which included a loss
on impairment of assets in the amount of approximately
HK$2.4 million.

Sub-leasing business

On 27 May 2011, the Company entered into an
agreement with HaoRan Cultural Development Limited
(the "HaoRan Vendor”) pursuant to which the Company
agreed to acquire from HaoRan Vendor the entire
issued capital of BoRen Cultural Development Limited
("BoRen"). Particulars of the transaction were announced
on 27 May 2011. BoRen holds indirect interests in a
group of companies which principally engage in sub-
leasing of properties and facilities in Nanjing. The
Company will receive compensation from HaoRan Vendor
and the guarantor under the agreement should the total
profit for three financial years ending 31 December
2016 be less than RMB75 million. The compensation is
payable only if the Company advances loans in the total
principal amount in Hong Kong dollars of not less than
a sum equivalent to RMB50 million (“Advanced Loans")
to Elite-China Cultural Development Limited or any of its
subsidiaries (“Elite Group"”) for each of the three financial
years.

XKEERAIRE)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Review (Continued)
Sub-leasing business (Continued)

The Company has not so far made any Advanced Loans
to Elite Group under the agreement as the Company
is contemplating various investment opportunities. The
Board considers it more beneficial to defer its obligation
in order to spare its resources to such other investment
opportunities which may offer better prospects and
return. On 30 September 2013, the Company entered
into the third supplemental agreement with HaoRan
Vendor and the guarantor to defer the guaranteed period.

On 22 October 2013, Nanjing Yinkun Investment
Corporation* (B R IR K EEF ¥ B R 2 7)) ("Nanjing
Yinkun") entered into an agreement with Nanjing
Shanhaijing Agricultural Technology Development
Company Limited* (AR ILIEBERERFERBRAF)
("Nanjing Shanhaijing”), an independent third party of
the Group, pursuant to which Nanjing Yiukun agreed to
dispose of and Nanjing Shanhaijing agreed to acquire
51% interest in Nanjing Yinkun Asset Management
Company Limited* (ARIBHBEEELLEEEGRAA])
(“Nanjing Yinkun Asset Management”) at a consideration
of RMB5.5 million (approximately HK$6.9 million). The
disposal of Nanjing Yinkun Asset Management was
completed in December 2013.

During the period under review, the sub-leasing business
recorded a turnover and a loss of approximately HK$65
million and HK$15 million respectively which included a
loss on disposal of Nanjing Yinkun Asset Management of
approximately HK$12 million.

XA R EAR AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

Review (Continued)
Hotel operations

Owing to keen competition in the hotel industry, the
Company entered into an agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of the entire issued share capital
of Wellrich Investments Limited (“Wellrich”). The
disposal of Wellrich (“Wellrich Disposal”) was approved
by shareholders of the Company on 25 June 2013
and completed on 22 July 2013. The gain on Wellrich
Disposal is approximately HK$79.4 million.

Outlook

During the period under review, the Group disposed
of the Zhaoging Star-Lake Club and Dynasty Hotel in
Zhaoging, CML and Nanjing Yinkun Asset Management
which brought in positive cashflow, and streamlined the
business operation of the Group. The Group may allocate
its resources to other investments which may generate
a better return. The Directors are optimistic about the
real property market in PRC and will continue to explore
other potential investment opportunities so as to broaden
the business horizons of the Company.

The Directors are confident of the business potential
of the Company. The Group's financial position is
strong with a net asset value of HK$683 million. The
management will continue to identify suitable strategic
investment opportunities for the Group.

* The English translation of the names of companies
established in PRC referred to in this report is for
reference only. The official names of those companies are
in Chinese.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company present their report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
23 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by
business segment is set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 60 to 62.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2014.
Capital will be reserved for the expansion of the Group's
business and to capture investment opportunities arising
in the future.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in notes 18 to
20 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 66 and note 41
to the financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as
at 31 March 2014 are set out in note 41 to the financial
statements.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group had
certain transactions with related parties as defined under
the applicable accounting standard. Those related party
transactions also fell under the definition of “connected
transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and were therefore subject to the related disclosure
requirements as set out in this report. Details of the
related party transactions are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company's bye-laws (“Bye-laws”) and there is
no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 4.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
The Company did not make any charitable donation
during the year under review (2013: HK$100,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 4(r) to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the Share Option Scheme of the Company (the
“Scheme”), the directors may grant options to eligible
person, including directors and employees of the Group,
to subscribe for shares of the Company.
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EEEHRESE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Details of the Scheme, including grant and lapse
of options, are disclosed in note 42 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Cheng Yang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Li Weipeng

Lei Lei

Tong Jingguo

Yang Rusheng

So Tat Keung

Zheng Yuchun (Resigned on 1 July 2013)

In accordance with bye-law 87(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Li
Weipeng and Mr. Tong Jingguo shall retire at the annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Yang (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 50, is an executive
Director, the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company. Mr. Cheng joined the Company in
April 2010 and has more than 10 years of experience
in entertainment and media business. Mr. Cheng is
the founder and a director of Cheng Films and Video
Production Limited (a company incorporated in Hong
Kong), which produces and distributes films and
television drama series in Greater China. He was also the
chairman, an executive director and the chief executive
officer of CMF. Mr. Cheng resigned as the chairman, an
executive director and the chief executive officer of CMF
with effect from 28 March 2014.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Lei Lei ("Ms. Lei"), aged 51, is an executive
Director and the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. She has been an executive director of Golden
Island (Management) Limited and Witty |dea Finance
Company Limited, both of which are the wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, since June 2012 and of
other subsidiaries of the Company since July 2012.
She has more than 16 years of experience in business
management. In early dates she taught at Chongqging
University of Posts and Telecommunications, and had
served as president of Hainan Bojin Cultural Investment
Company Ltd., and the chief executive officer of Sunp
Canada Inc. (which publishes “Health Times"” Ottawa
edition). Ms. Lei graduated from Chongging University
of Posts and Telecommunications in 1985 with a
bachelor's degree in engineering, and received a master
of philosophy degree in 1988 from Shaanxi Normal
University. Ms. Lei joined the Company on 3 September
2012.

Mr. Li Weipeng (“Mr. Li"), aged 56, is an executive
Director of the Company. He was the deputy director
and director of foreign exchange management office
of the People’s Bank in Yantai, deputy director in the
state administration of foreign exchange business of
Port Operations in Qingdao. During the period from
June 1994 to July 2007, Mr. Li served as president in
Yantai Branch, vice president in Chongging Branch and
president in Shanghai Pudong Branch of CITIC Bank (its
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and Shanghai
Stock Exchange); and served as director of Shanghai
Hong Yang Culture Media. He was an executive director
of Shangdong International Finance Institute; a director
of Chongging Finance Institute and a director of Pudong
Financial Promotion Association. Mr. Li graduated from
Tianjin University in December 1993 with a master
degree in business administration. Mr. Li joined the
Company in October 2010.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tong Jingguo (“Mr. Tong"”), aged 42, holds a
bachelor degree in engineering from Xi'an Jiaotong
University and a master degree in business
administration from Fudan University. Mr. Tong joined
the Company in June 2010. During the period from
October 2002 to March 2004, he was the president of
Zhuhai Gaoling Information Technology Co., Ltd. In 2004,
Mr. Tong also founded Shenzhen Huo King Management
Consulting Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yang Rusheng (“Mr. Yang"”), aged 46, has 22 years
of experience in finance, audit and tax. Mr. Yang worked
in the financial department of Shenzhen Construction
Industry (Group) Co. from July 1993 to October 1994.
Thereafter, he had worked in various CPA firms in PRC,
including, as a manager and senior manager in Shenzhen
Yongming CPA firm, a director in Shenzhen Guangsheng
CPA firm and Shenzhen Youxin CPA firm and a partner of
Wanlong Asia CPA Co., Ltd and a director of its Shenzhen
Branch. Since October 2009, he has been a partner and
vice-president of Rui Hua Certified Public Accountants
and a director of its Shenzhen Branch. His clients
include corporation, public listed companies, state-
owned enterprises and financial institutions. Mr. Yang
was a member of Shenzhen Certified Public Accountants
Ethic Committee and Shenzhen Finance Bureau Certified
Public Accountant Responsibility Judge Committee. He
was a vice-president of Institute of Shenzhen Certified
Public Accountants. He was a director of the Guangdong
Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an
executive director of Shenzhen Certified Tax Agents
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Association and a director of The China Certified Tax
Agents Association. Mr. Yang graduated from Jinan
University in 1993 with a master degree in economics.
He is a Chinese Certified Public Accountant and
Chinese Certified Tax Agent in PRC. Mr. Yang was an
independent director of public listed companies, namely
Shenzhen Coship Electronics Co., Ltd., Shenzhen SEG
Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Tianjian (Group) Co., Ltd. Mr.
Yang was an independent director of a public company,
Ping An Bank Co. Ltd. Mr. Yang joined the Company in
October 2010.

Mr. So Tat Keung (“Mr. So”), aged 58, is a solicitor
practicing in Hong Kong and a notary public in Hong
Kong. Prior to working as a solicitor, he had worked in
the construction industry in government departments
and private companies from 1978 to 1986. Mr. So was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1988. Currently
he is a consultant in Paul C. W. Tse & Co. Mr. So holds
bachelor of science in civil engineering from University
of Hong Kong and bachelor of law from University of
London. He was admitted as a member of The Institution
of Civil Engineers in the United Kingdom in 1982 and a
member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers in
1985. Mr. So joined the Company in October 2010.

The Company has received an annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-
executive Director in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”) and the Company
considers that all the independent non-executive

Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management (Continued)

Senior management

Mr. Jin Lei (“Mr. Jin"), aged 51, is a vice president
of the Company responsible for the cultural property
business of the Group. Mr. Jin joined the Company in
March 2011 and has extensive experience in real estate
development. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Jin
worked at Jiangxi Bureau Limited as general manager.
He graduated from Hunan University in 1984 with a
bachelor degree in electrical engineering and obtained an
EMBA degree in 2004 from Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. Kan Yisong (“Mr. Kan”), aged 41, is a vice president
of the Company responsible for the advertising and
exhibition business of the Group. Mr. Kan was also an
executive director of CMF from 5 March 2012 to 25
May 2012. He joined the Company in May 2011 and
has extensive experience in exhibition and advertising
business. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Kan was
a director and a general manager of a subsidiary of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“China
Resources”). Mr. Kan has a bachelor degree in
engineering from the Xi'an Jiaotong University and a
master degree in business administration from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Yu Wai Chun (“Mr. Yu"), aged 41, is the chief
financial officer of the Company. Mr. Yu holds a master
degree in business administration in international
business from the City University Business School in the
United Kingdom and a bachelor degree in accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He has extensive experience in
management, auditing and accounting. Mr. Yu joined the
Company in July 2011.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management (Continued)

Senior management (Continued)

Mr. Chan Wai, aged 45, is the company secretary and
an authorized representative of the Company. Mr. Chan
Wai holds a master degree in Professional Accounting
awarded by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales. Mr. Chan Wai has extensive
experience in accounting and financial management. Mr.
Chan Wai joined the Company in August 2012.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors has service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its
holding company was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Directors’ interests in equity or debt securities

As at 31 March 2014, the interests of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the share capital of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO") or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

EENEREERE 2

EERBRAREHREZ 2ER

R-ZFE-—WNFEF=A=+—H ARFAEFK
TETBRABRARARAPHEECHENRE
REESEBEGRITESRPEEMN DS
L2 M EFE 2 BEMIBERE EHEITA
ERETRFRHZBESTR(FESTA L)
SITHEARRR R 2 ERNT -

Approximate

Number of percentage of

underlying the issued

Number of Shares held share capital

Shares held under equity of the

Name of Director Nature of Interest (long position) derivatives Total Company
RERE

fTETAR EARAT

iR 5 BFEZHR ERITRAZ

B BEatE 2E(#R) BB EE gt BRES T

Mr. Cheng Yang Personal interest 89,349,000 5,987,670 95,336,670 15.92%
BHEE (BN (Note 2) (Note 1)
(Hizt2) (HrsE1)

Ms. Lei Lei Personal interest — 5,388,903 5,388,903 0.9%
EELL N £ (Note 1)
(Krat1)

Mr. Li Weipeng Personal interest — 2,993,835 2,993,835 0.5%
FHESEE N+ Note 1)
(Kt 1)

Mr. Tong Jingguo Personal interest — 299,384 299,384 0.05%
KRR B Note 1)
(Kt 1)

Mr. Yang Rusheng Personal interest — 299,384 299,384 0.05%
BANE A (BN 5 (Note 1)
(Kiat1)

Mr. So Tat Keung Personal interest — 299,384 299,384 0.05%
FER N & Note 1)
(Kiat1)

Notes Hat
1. The number of underlying Shares held under equity 1. BERATEIAEFEZHBERGOEE AXE

derivatives is the share options granted by the Company
on 23 December 2013.

2. 89,300,000 Shares were owned by Mr. Cheng Yang
personally and 49,000 Shares were owned by his wife.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Directors’ interests in equity or debt securities
(Continued)

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2014, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2014, other than the interests of a director
and chief executive of the Company disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Directors’ interests in equity or debt
securities” above, according to the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, the following persons had interests in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company:
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Number of

shares as at  Percentage of

Name Nature of Interest 31 March 2014 shareholding

R=-Z-—NF

=A=t—H
=18 EmiE ZBRHEE FRESH
China Resources (Holdings) Company  Interest of controlled corporation 66,666,666 11.13

Limited
EE(EE)ERAT REthEEER
China Resources Co., Limited Interest of controlled corporation 66,666,666 11.13
EERNBEAR] Rt EEER
China Resources National Corporation Interest of controlled corporation 66,666,666 11.13
FEERENT T EEER
Commotra Company Limited Beneficial owner 66,666,666 11.13
SBARAF ERBEAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued) FERR#E

Number of

shares as at  Percentage of

yd

Name Nature of Interest 31 March 2014 shareholding
R=Z-—NF
=A=+-—H
a8 ERttE ZRGEE BEREA
CRC Bluesky Limited Interest of controlled corporation 66,666,666 11.13
XA E RS

Lo Yuk Sui (“Mr. Lo") Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 55,095,600 9.20

B ([EEE]D Rt EEER (A7)

Secure Way Technology Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 55,095,600 9.20
(“Secure Way") SRS EEER (M)

Net Community Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 55,095,600 9.20
(“Net Community”) SRS EEER(MiF2)

Century Digital Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 55,095,600 9.20
("Century Digital") SRS EEER(MF3)

Grand Modern Investments Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4) 55,095,600 9.20
("Grand Modern") SEHEEER (M2 4)

Century City International Holdings Interest of controlled corporation (Note 5) 55,095,600 9.20
Limited (“Century City International”)

tt 42 3ok T B R R AR B PR A ) Rl EEER (A7 5)
(Mt A m T BER 1)

Century City BVI Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 6) 55,095,600 9.20
("Century City BVI") SEGEEEE(NH6)

Paliburg Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 7) 55,095,600 9.20

("Paliburg Holdings")
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

EETEHES
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FERR#E

Number of

shares as at  Percentage of

Name Nature of Interest 31 March 2014 shareholding
R-E-DOF
=A=t+—-H
218 ERtE 2R E FRESH
Paliburg Development BVI Interest of controlled corporation (Note 8) 55,095,600 9.20
Holdings Limited RIS EEER(HZS)
("Paliburg Development BVI")
Regal Hotels International Holdings Interest of controlled corporation (Note 9) 46,095,600 7.70
Limited (“Regal Hotels International”)
BRAEBEEERERDA REHEEERS (ML 9)
((ExBEBR])
Regal International (BVI) Interest of controlled corporation 46,095,600 7.70

Holdings Limited (Note 10)

("Regal International (BVI)")

1. Secure Way is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lo.

2. Net Community is wholly and beneficially owned by
Secure Way.

3. Century Digital is wholly and beneficially owned by Net
Community.

4. Grand Modern is wholly and beneficially owned by Century
Digital.

5. Grand Modern owns 50.79% interest in Century City
International, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

6. Century City BVI is wholly and beneficially owned by
Century City International.

7. Century City BVI owns 62.21% interest in Paliburg
Holdings.

8. Paliburg Development BVI is wholly owned and
beneficially owned by Paliburg Holdings.

9. Paliburg Development BVI owns 55.59% interest in Regal
Hotels International.

10. Regal International BVI is wholly and beneficially owned
by Regal Hotels International.

Rzl EE S (ML 10)

1. Secure Way B TLEEZENE=MES -

2. Net Community i Secure Way 2 & KB
WA -

E\

i}

3. Century Digital # Net Community & &
wmHEE -

\

i

4. Grand Modern 1 Century Digital & &
miEa o

\

5. Grand Modern #i & tt 42 5 T BB (B 32 P =
R ETAR])50.79% #Ex o

6. Century City BVIHItLHMBEEE2ELE
miEA o

7. Century City BVI#F Paliburg Holdings 62.21%
RS o

8. Paliburg Development BVIH Paliburg
Holdings 2 8 M E#&#EH -

9.  Paliburg Development BVIA & 55
X 55.59% fEz °

10. Regal International BVIHH B ZBEHE 2 &
REXHES -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, according
to the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO, there was no
person who had any interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregated sales attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 10% while the largest customer accounted
for approximately 4% of its total turnover.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 87% while the largest supplier accounted
for approximately 45% of its total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

During the year, the Group entered into the
following non-exempted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under Rules
14A.31 or 14A.33 of the Listing Rules:

(a)

On 30 April 2012, the Company entered into
an agreement with Rise Jumbo Limited (“Rise
Jumbo”) for the acquisition of 4.235% of the
issued share capital of, and the benefit of
50% of loan (“Loan”) due from Welly Champ
International Limited (“Welly Champ”) for an
aggregate consideration of HK$9 million in
cash. Mr. Li Bin, a director of Welly Champ
and Golden Island Catering Group Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, owned 50% interest in Rise Jumbo.
The Company entered into a supplemental
agreement with Rise Jumbo and Li Bin on 9
May 2012 to the effect that the completion
of the acquisition should take place in two
phases: (i) the first of which took place on 10
May 2012 in respect of 4.45 shares of US$1
each of Welly Champ and HK$2,633,867 of the
Loan at the consideration of HK$4 million; and
(ii) the second of which took place on 25 April
2013 in respect of 5.55 shares of US$1 each
of Welly Champ and the balance of the Loan
at the consideration of HK$5 million;

On 14 February 2014, Wave High entered
into an agreement with Mr. Chan Siu Kei
("Mr. Chan”) (a director and substantial
shareholder of CML) to dispose of the Group's
60% interests in CML at a consideration of
approximately HK$9.5 million. The sum of
HK$8,545,516.8 was settled in cash within
2 business days from completion and the
remaining balance in the sum of HK$954,483.2
was settled by (i) Mr. Chan assigning his
benefits of HK$715,862.4 in the collected
fees to Wave High; and (ii) Ms. Wong Oi
Kwan, Jenny Natalie assigning her benefits of
HK$238,620.8 in the collected fees to Wave
High on completion;
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

1.

(Continued)

(c)

On 21 September 2012, the Company as
purchaser and Ms. Lau Wang Tai, Wendy
("Ms. Lau"”) and Mr. Tsang Yat Loi ("“Mr.
Tsang"”) as vendors entered into an acquisition
agreement pursuant to which the Company
acquired the entired issued share capital of
Media Sound Technology Limited (“Media
Sound"”) at the total consideration of
HK$55,896,400. The vendors are the owners
of the entire issued share capital of Media
Sound, which is a substantial shareholder of
Song Labs Company Limited* (4t | X & [l
BEBRMAMR AT ), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The consideration
was settled by (i) a deposit in the sum of
HK$15,000,000 upon signing of the acquisition
agreement; and (ii) by promissory notes to Ms.
Lau and Mr. Tsang.

On 14 February 2014, the Company entered
into a variation agreement with Ms. Lau
pursuant to which the Company, upon signing
of the variation agreement, repaid the sum of
HK$10,550,000 to Ms. Lau under a promissory
note issued to Ms. Lau on 30 January 2013
and issued a new promissory note for the
outstanding sum of HK$6,192,300 with 30
June 2014 as the last date for payment;

On 14 February 2014, the Company entered
into a payment extension agreement with
Mr. Tsang pursuant to which the Company
and Mr. Tsang agreed to extend the last date
of payment of a promissory note dated 30
January 2013 issued to Mr. Tsang from 29
January 2014 to 30 June 2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

2.

The following tenancy agreements between two
subsidiaries of China Resources, being a substantial
shareholder of the Company, as landlords and the
Group as tenant (being non-exempted continuing
connected transactions under Rule 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules) were entered into/subsisting during
the year ended 31 March 2014:

(a) tenancy agreement dated 8 September 2010

Landlord: China Resources Property
Management Limited
("CR Property”), acting
as the lawful attorney and
agent for and on behalf of
Eastern World Development
Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of China
Resources

Tenant: Golden Island Catering Group
Company Limited (“Golden
Island”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

Property: Rooms 2501-05, 25th
Floor, China Resources
Building (“China Resources
Building”), No. 26 Harbour
Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
("Property 1)

Term: 16 November 2010 to
15 November 2013

Rent: HK$311,670 per month
(exclusive of rates and
management fee)

Management  HK$64,411.80 per month
fee: (increased to HK$74,800.80
per month from 1 April 2013
onwards)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BEXS#)
2. (Continued) 2. (&)
(b) tenancy agreement dated 30 March 2011 (b) BEB-—T——=A=t+HzZ#
%
Landlord: CR Property ¥+ =Ry
Tenant: Golden Island HE &5
Property: Rooms 2506-10, 25th Floor, ¥ R AE 251
China Resources Building 2506-10
("Property 11") (Izx=1)
Term: 1 April 2011 to 31 March FH —T—%
2014 MA—HB=Z
—E—mF
=A=+—H
Rent: HK$363,615 per month e - & H363,615/%57T
(exclusive of rates and (T"BRFEEME
management fee) ERE)
Management  HK$64,411.80 per month ERE 5 A64,411.80/87T
fee: (increased to HK$74,800.80 (B=ZZE—=F
per month from 1 April 2013 MA—HiEE
onwards) & A 74,800.80
BIT)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

728 (Continued)

(c)

tenancy agreement dated 8 October
2009 (as amended on 29 March 2011,
supplemented on 16 September 2011 and
terminated on 31 May 2013)

Landlord: CR Property

Tenant: China Resources Advertising
& Exhibition Company
Limited (“CR Advertising”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company

Property: Exhibition Hall, 3rd and
4th Floors, Lower Block,
China Resources Building

Term: 14 September 2009 to
30 September 2011 and
thereafter on monthly basis
(the tenancy was terminated
on 31 May 2013)

Rent: Free of rent since 1 January
2011

Management  Free of management fee
fee: from 1 January 2011 to
30 September 2011, and
thereafter at a rate of
HK$70,000 per month
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (cContinued) REXS#)
2. (Continued) 2. (&)
(d) Three licence agreements dated 28 June (d) =ZBEHAE-Z—Z-—FxA=+N
2012 H 2Rt S
Landlord: CR Property ¥x =Y
Tenant: Golden Island and Wellrich (a iEi=hE % 5 K& Wellrich
wholly owned subsidiary of (RREIZEE
the Company) MIE AR
Property: Three parking bays at China S EHARE 2 =1E
Resources Building B
Term: 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013 FH —E—_fF
+HA—H=®
—F—=
~NA=+H
Rent: HK$3,700 each per month s B AFER3,700
BT
(e) Signboard located at China Resources (e) NREFABEZEER(EETSE
Building (no written contract and terminated HWRER=-B—=FRA=+—8H
on 31 May 2013) #1E)
Landlord: CR Property E ol Bk
Tenant: CR Advertising GiEN=NE FRES
Property: Sign board located at China e URERREZ
Resources Building B LR

g
1

Management  HK$1,240 per month FH1,240%7T

fee:
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

728 (Continued)

(f)  Tenancy agreement dated 15 November

2013

Landlord: CR Property

Tenant: Golden Island

Property: Property |

Term: 16 November 2013 to
15 November 2016

Rent: HK$550,617 per month
(exclusive of management
fees)

Management  HK$74,800.80 per month

fee and air- (subject to adjustment from

conditioning time to time)

charges:

Deposit: HK$1,876,253.40 (equivalent

to the sum of three months’

rental and management
fees)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BEXS#)
2. (Continued) 2. (&)
(g) Tenancy agreement dated 11 April 2014 (g) AMA-Z=Z—MmNENA+—AZHE
%
Landlord: CR Property ¥x Bk ES
Tenant: Golden Island Fizh =N 8
Property: Property |l Y ME—
Term: 1 April 2014 to 31 FH —ET-mEF
March 2017 WMA—HB=Z®
e
=A=+—H
Rent: HK$550,617 per month He - & H550,617 87T
(exclusive of management (THEEERE)
fees)

Management  HK$74,800.80 per month EBBNR & H74,800.80
fee and air- (subject to adjustment from = E 78 7T (AT B T LA
conditioning time to time) FE)
charges:

Deposit: HK$1,876,253.40 (equivalent Ze - 1,876,253.40 % 7T

to the sum of three months’ (FEER=1EA
rental and management HeERERE 2
fees) “F)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
confirm that the transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company
would state that BDO Limited, the auditor of the
Company, has confirmed the matters stated in Rule
14A.38 of the Listing Rules relating to the continuing
connected transactions.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of
significance between the Group and a controlling
shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including for the
provision of services to the Group.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 March 2014, the Group employed a total
number of 486 employees. The Group remunerates
its employees based on their performance, experience
and prevailing industry practices. The emoluments of
the Directors and senior management of the Company
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’'s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group periodically reviews its remuneration
package in order to attract, motivate and retain its
employees. Discretionary bonuses are rewarded to staff
and Directors based on the Group’s profit and their
performance.

The Company adopted a share option scheme mentioned
above for the primary purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to any Director, employee and other eligible
participant who made significant contribution to the
Group. The Group also provides external training courses
to its staff to improve their skills and services.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group finances its operations with internally
generated resources. The Group maintains good business
relationship with banks and has sufficient banking
facilities available for future business development. Upon
the completion of the Xi‘an project, the Company will be
obligated to issue a convertible bond of HK$250,000,000
to the vendor.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had borrowings of
approximately HK$69 million (2013: HK$149 million).
The gearing ratio of the Group was 10.1% (2013:
19.5%). Such ratio was calculated with reference to the
total borrowings (being the sum of bank borrowings,
other borrowings and the convertible bonds) over the
Company’s shareholders’ equity.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

The Group was able to generate sufficient cash flow
from its operations to fulfill its repayment obligations and
meet the cash requirements for its day-to-day operations
for the year. The revenue of the Group, being mostly
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar, matches
the currency requirement of the Group's expenses which
other foreign currency transactions were immaterial. No
financial instrument was used for hedging. The Group
was not exposed to any exchange rate risk or any related
hedges.

Charges

As at 31 March 2014, the Group provided a deposit of
RMB11,000,000 to an independent third party to secure
a loan of HK$13,000,000.

As at 31 March 2014, Mr. Yang Lei (a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company) and a company beneficially
owned by Mr. Yang Lei and his spouse respectively
provided guarantees for certain bank loans of the Group.
Certain assets of Mr. Yang Lei were also pledged to
secure bank loans of the Group.

As at 31 March 2014, the Company provided guarantee
to Golden Island, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company for corporate credit cards limit up to
HK$5,300,000.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
charges on assets as at 31 March 2014.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
Directors of the Company and senior management of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in

notes 12 and 46(d) to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its

subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2014.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, not less than
25% of the issued share capital of the Company is held

by the public.

OTHER MATTERS

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in

note 52 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO

Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Yang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board and the senior management of the Company
are committed to establishing good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The maintenance of high
standard of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Group's goals.
The Company believes that good corporate governance
provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, successful business growth and a healthy
corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigourous corporate governance practices, the
Group believes that its accountability and transparency
will be improved thereby instilling confidence to
shareholders and the public. Throughout the financial
year ended 31 March 2014, the Group has complied with
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules save for certain deviations, details of which will
be explained in the relevant paragraphs in this report.
The Board will review its corporate governance practice
annually and make necessary changes if necessary.
Meetings were held throughout the year under review
and where appropriate, circulars and other guidance
notes were issued to Directors and senior management
of the Group to ensure they were aware of issues
regarding corporate governance practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Company and oversees the Group's business,
strategic decisions and performances and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. In practice, the
Board takes responsibility for decision making in all
major matters of the Company including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, the setting of objectives,
annual budgets and overall strategies, the entering into
material transactions, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. The day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior executives. Their
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions
made by the Board, the co-ordination and direction of
day-to-day operation and management of the Company
in accordance with the management strategies and plans
approved by the Board. The Board receives full support
from senior executives to discharge its responsibility.
Prior approval has to be obtained from the Board before
entering into any significant transactions. The statement
of the auditors of the Company in relation to their
reporting responsibilities for the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's
Report on pages 57 to 59 of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition

As at 31 March 2014, the Board comprises six Directors,
including three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng
Yang (chairman), Ms. Lei Lei, Mr. Li Weipeng and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tong
Jingguo, Mr. Yang Rusheng and Mr. So Tat Keung.

One of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate accounting and financial management
expertise. The number of independent non-executive
Directors is more than one-third of the Board.
Biographical details of the Chairman and other Directors
are set out in Profiles of Directors on pages 14 to 17 of
this report.

The presence of three independent non-executive
Directors is considered by the Board to be a reasonable
balance between executive and non-executive Directors.
The Board is of the opinion that such balance can provide
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and of the Group. The independent non-
executive Directors provide to the Group with a wide
range of expertise and experience so that independent
judgement can be exercised effectively. They have also
participated in Board meetings and general meetings,
dealt with potential conflicts of interest, served on audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company and scrutinized the Group's
performance and reporting. Through their active
participation, the management process of the Company
can be critically reviewed and controlled.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their
field of expertise, and have exhibited high standards
of personal and professional ethics and integrity. All
Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the Company's affairs. The Board believes that the
ratio between executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to
perform check and balance function over the Board in
the decision making process.

The Board is responsible for the appointment of new
Director and nomination for re-election by shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company. Under
the Company’s Bye-laws, the Board may from time to
time appoint a Director either to fill a vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any new Director appointed to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office until the first general meeting after his
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at
the next following annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENCE

The Company has three independent non-executive
Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
accounting and financial management expertise. The
Group has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence. The
Company considers these Directors to be independent
under the guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified
as such in all corporate communications containing the
names of the Directors. In addition, there is no material
relationship between Board members.
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DEVIATIONS FROM THE CG CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Company complied with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, save and except the
following exceptions: CG Code Provisions A.2.1 (division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer), A.4.1 (term of appointment of non-
executive Directors) and A.6.7 (attendance of general
meetings by Directors).

a. Division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive officer

Under the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company have
been performed by Mr. Cheng Yang, who is also
an executive Director. The Board is of the view
that the non-segregation would not result in
considerable concentration of power in one person
and has the advantage of strong and consistent
leadership which is conducive to making and
implementing decisions quickly and consistently.

The Board will review the effectiveness of this
arrangement from time to time and consider
appointing an individual as the chief executive
officer of the Company when it thinks appropriate.
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DEVIATIONS FROM THE CG CODE
(Continued)

b.

Term of appointment of non-executive Directors

Under the CG Code provision A.4.1, all non-
executive Directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. The term of
office for non-executive Directors is subject to
retirement from office by rotation and is eligible
for re-election in accordance with the provisions of
the Company’s Bye-laws. At each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, (or if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation. As such,
the Company considers that such provisions are
sufficient to meet the underlying objectives of CG
Code.

Attendance of general meetings by Directors

Under the CG Code provision A.6.7, independent
non-executive Directors and other non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr. Cheng Yang and Mr. Li Weipeng,
the executive Directors, and Mr. So Tat Keung, the
independent non-executive Director, attended the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 25
September 2013. Mr. Cheng Yang, Mr. Li Weipeng
and Ms. Lei Lei, the executive Directors, attend
the special general meetings of the Company held
on 25 June 2013, 7 November 2013 and 31 March
2014 respectively. Other Directors were unable to
attend the annual general meeting and the special
general meetings due to personal reasons.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other
electronic means of communication at least four times
every year to determine the overall strategic direction,
objectives and to approve interim results, annual results
or other significant matters. Draft notice and agenda
for regular meetings are provided to all Directors for
comments and inclusion of any matters for deliberation
at the meetings. Apart from holding regular meetings,
senior management from time to time provides to the
Directors information on activities and development
of the business of the Group. The company secretary
assists the chairman in preparing agenda for the
meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations in connection with the meetings are observed
and complied with. The agenda and Board papers are
then sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior to the
meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed
minutes, keeps records of matters discussed and
decision resolved at the meetings.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EEgeERRRERAE#)
MEETINGS (continued)

During the year under review, 21 Board meetings were REBEFRN BRIT2INEZESCH -EF
held. Attendance of Board meetings, general meetings HREFEeaes REXELEKSBEZEZE

and its respective committees by Directors are as @@ 7IERINT
follows:
Annual Special
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination General General
Meeting Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting Meeting
Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/
Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible
Name of Director To Attend To Attend To Attend To Attend To Attend To Attend
) ) HE/ ) ) )
RERLEE AREKUERE RERHE REREE SEREE SERLE
Exe ERZEEg yMzEe REZEER [ES [ES
Y = = = =f BERE BEIRE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Cheng Yang 7/21 0/2 01 1/1 m 2/3
RBI5EE
Ms. Lei Lei 19/21 0/2 0/ 0/ 0/ 2/3
BHELL
Mr. Li Weipeng 20/21 0/2 0/1 0/1 1M 1/3
FHELYE
Mr. Zheng Yuchun 6/21 0/2 0/ 0/ 01 0/3
(Resigned on 1 July
2013)
BRZARE(RZ—=F
+ A—HEHT)
Independent
Non-Executive
Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. So Tat Keung 14/21 2/2 11 0/1 11 0/3
BRERLE
Mr. Yang Rusheng 20/21 1/2 7 A 0/1 0/3
TR
Mr. Tong Jingguo 17/21 2/2 11 11 0/ 0/3
KRRBELE
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS (Continued)

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors
discuss and formulate the overall strategies of the Group,
monitor financial performances, review the annual and
interim results, and make decisions on other significant
matters. The execution of daily operational matters is
delegated to the senior executives of the Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each
Board meeting in detail by keeping minutes, including the
record of all decisions resolved by the Board together
with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if
any). Draft Board minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comment and approval as soon as practicable after
the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at any
reasonable time upon request by any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely
information at all times and they may make further
enquiries if it is necessary to do so.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, who is held
responsible for providing Directors with Board papers
and other related materials. The Company Secretary will
also ensure that proper Board procedures are followed
and that all applicable laws and regulations are complied
with. If the Directors consider necessary and appropriate,
they may retain the service of independent professional
advisers at the Group's expense.

In case where a conflict of interest arises involving a
substantial shareholder or a Director, such matter will be
resolved in a physical meeting instead of passing written
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors with
no conflict of interest will be present at meetings to deal
with such conflict issues.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS (continued)

The Board committees, including the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, have all adopted the applicable practices and
procedures used in Board meetings.

The annual general meeting and other special general
meetings of the Company are the primary forum
for communication with our shareholders and for
shareholders’ participation. All shareholders are
encouraged to attend the general meetings or to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings on their behalves
if they are unable to attend.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, apart from the
annual general meeting held on 25 September 2013,
the Company held special general meetings on 25 June
2013, 7 November 2013 and 31 March 2014 respectively.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR
DIRECTORS

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business of the
Group. As such, the Group provides a comprehensive
and formal induction to each newly appointed Director
upon his/her appointment. Briefings and orientations are
provided so as to ensure that new Directors are familiar
with the role of the Board, their legal and other duties
as a Director as well as the business and governance
practices of the Group. Such programmes are tailor made
for each Director taking into account their background
and expertise.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR
DIRECTORS (Continued)

All Directors have participated in a briefing session
jointly organized by the Group and qualified professionals
engaged by the Group with the purpose to develop and
refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills.

EEZBIR<E @

%‘&E%%E 2 ,\mﬁﬁl&ﬁﬁﬁéﬂa—z/\éﬁ
Ei%%Z%ﬂ%&&&ﬁz :

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Directors RBE_Z—NF=-A=+—BLFERN"
participated in the following training: EEEL2HETHEE -
Type of training

Name of Director BEEHR EF R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheng Yang (e ptas A B
Ms. Lei Lei EEXT A, B
Mr. Li Weipeng TEERE A B
Mr. Zheng Yuchun BEZE

(Resigned on 1 July 2013) (RZF—=F+H—HFF) A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. So Tat Keung BRIES S AE A, B
Mr. Yang Rusheng B E A B
Mr. Tong Jingguo KEE%E A, B
A: attending seminars, briefing sessions, conferences A HEWSE  ENe - enk FmiE

and/or forums
B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating
to the economy and/or general business etc.

Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and
thereafter on a yearly basis, disclose to the Group the
number and nature of offices held by such Director in
public companies and organizations and other significant
commitments.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established with
specific written terms of reference. As at 31 March
2014, the remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tong
Jingguo (chairman), Mr. Yang Rusheng and Mr. So Tat
Keung.

The remuneration committee is responsible for
formulating and making recommendations to the Board
regarding the overall remuneration policy, remuneration
of Directors and senior management of the Group, share
option scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and other
compensation-related issues. This committee consults
with the chairman on its proposals and recommendations
and has access to professional advice if deemed
necessary. The remuneration committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge and perform its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the remuneration
committee is posted on the Company’'s website. The
remuneration committee meets at least once a year.
During the year under review, the remuneration
committee held 1 meeting, during which the committee
members reviewed the remuneration packages and
benefits of directors for the 2014.

XA WIRRE AR A A
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established with specific
written terms of reference on 24 January 2013 (such
terms of reference was subsequently revised on 30
August 2013). As at 31 March 2014, the nomination
committee consists of one executive Director and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Cheng Yang (chairman), Mr. Tong Jingguo and Mr. Yang
Rusheng.

The duties of the nomination committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board annually, making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’'s corporate strategy, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board,
selecting individuals nominated for directorship,
assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive officer.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination
committee is posted on the Company’'s website. The
nomination committee meets at least once a year.

During the year under review, the nomination committee
held 1 meeting, during which the committee members
reviewed the composition of the Board and the
independence of independent non-executive Directors of
the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with
written terms of reference. Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules requires that the audit committee must comprise
a minimum of three members with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors and at least one
member must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The main duties of the audit committee are as follows:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the compliance officer or external auditor before
submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system and
associated procedures.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its
specific terms of reference which is posted on the
Company's website. The audit committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge and perform its
duties.

XA WIRRE AR A A
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

As at 31 March 2014, the audit committee consists
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tong Jingguo (chairman), Mr. Yang Rusheng and
Mr. So Tat Keung. No member of the audit committee
is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the
Company within one year on the date of his ceasing to
be a partner or had any financial interest in the auditing
firm. The audit committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
with the management team of the Company. During the
year, the audit committee held 2 meetings to review the
Group's annual report and interim report.

The audit committee has also reviewed the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, report on the
Company’s internal control and risk management review
and processes as well as the re-appointment of the
external auditor. There is no material uncertainty relating
to events and conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
There is no disagreement between the Board and the
audit committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Company's annual report for the year ended 31
March 2014 has been reviewed by the audit committee.
The accounts for the year were audited by BDO Limited
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The audit committee has
recommended to the Board that BDO Limited be
nominated for appointment as the auditor of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit
committee meetings. In line with practices consistent
with Board meetings and other committee meetings,
draft and final version of audit committee meeting
minutes are circulated to all members of the audit
committee for comments, approval and record as soon
as practicable after each meeting.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the remuneration
in respect of audit services provided by the auditors,
BDO Limited, amounted to HK$2,415,000 (2013:
HK$2,603,000). For non-audit services, the fees
amounted to approximately HK$1,221,800 (2013:
HK$915,000).

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors (“Code of Conduct”)
on terms no less than the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code. All Directors have
confirmed that, following a specific enquiry by the
Company, they have complied with the Code of Conduct
adopted by the Company.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements, which give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group. The auditor is
responsible to form an independent opinion on the
audited financial statements and report the same to the
shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been
established and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions including but not
limited to developing and reviewing the Company's
policies and practices on corporate governance,
reviewing and monitoring training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management.

XA WIRRE AR A A
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board and the audit committee are responsible for
maintaining sound and effective internal control systems
to safeguard the assets of the Company, shareholders’
interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness of
such systems from time to time. The Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system,
covering financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions during the year under
review.

In such review, the Board has considered factors
such as changes since the last review, incidence of
significant control failings and weaknesses identified
and effectiveness relating to financial reporting and
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
including the Listing Rules.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the
overall strategic development of the Group's business.
All Directors have formal letters of appointment setting
out key terms and conditions of their appointment. Due
to the diversity and volume of the Group’s business,
responsibility in relation to the daily operations and
execution of the strategic business plans are delegated
to management of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee,
have specific terms of reference setting out the
authorities and responsibilities of the respective
committee. All committees are required by their terms
of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain
specific situations, to seek the Board's approval before
taking any actions.
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The Board will review, on a yearly basis, all delegations
by the Board to different committees to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate and continue to be beneficial
to the Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’
and Officers’ Liability to provide adequate cover, as
determined by the Board, in respect of the Board
members and senior management of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level
of transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders.
The commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive
and transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can
be reflected in various aspects.

To maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders,
the annual general meeting provides an opportunity for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer attended the annual general
meeting in 2013 (“2013 Annual General Meeting”) so as
to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated
to the Board. A separate resolution was proposed by the
chairman in respect of each separate issue at the annual
general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS (Continued)

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are
reviewed from time to time to ensure that the Company
conforms to the best corporate governance practices.
The circular in relation to the arrangement of annual
general meeting will be circulated to all shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the holding of the
annual general meeting, in which set out the details of
each resolution proposed and other relevant information.
At the 2013 Annual General Meeting, all resolutions
were put to vote by poll. Tricor Secretaries Limited, the
Company's Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, was
engaged as scrutineer to ensure votes were properly
counted. The rights of shareholders and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolutions at general meeting
are contained in the Company's Bye-laws. An explanation
of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll is
provided to the shareholders at the commencement
of the meeting. The Chairman would respond to
queries raised by the shareholders regarding the voting
procedures. The poll results are published in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, shareholder(s) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition
and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitions
themselves may do so in accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Companies Act of Bermuda.
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SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS (Continued)

The Company also communicates to its shareholders
through its annual and interim reports. The Directors,
company secretary or other appropriate members of
senior management also respond promptly to inquiries
from shareholders and investors.

Shareholders may at any time serve their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of company secretary
at Rooms 2501-05, 25th Floor, China Resources Building,
No. 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and
timely disclosure of corporate information to shareholders
and investors. The Company updates shareholders
on its latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual and interim reports and
notices, announcements and circulars. The Company's
website (http://www.tricor.com.hk/WebService/000674/)
provides a communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

During the year under review, there had been no
significant change made to the Company’s constitutional
documents.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance
is significant in strengthening investor confidence and
attracting investment. The management will devote
considerable effort to strengthen and improve the
standards of the corporate governance of the Group. Any
views and suggestions from the shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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|IBDO

EEE © +852 2218 8288
{88 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
(XL BRRERR AT

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Culture Landmark Investment Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 60 to 255, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2014
and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Alfred Lee
Practising Certificate Number P04960

Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEZZTNF=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
—E-lEF —E—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
it B BT
(Restated)
(&%)
(note 1)
(Hiaz1)
Continuing operations BERSEER
Turnover | 7 224,247,041 230,278,363
Other income and gains H b g A Kbz 8 30,400,017 70,539,771
Costs of inventories FERA (1,183,575) (1,417,465)
Depreciation on property, plant 1% - BE MEEZITE
and equipment (19,071,442) (22,729,469)
Amortisation B 9 (28,495,327) (26,382,646)
Impairment losses BB E TR 9 (16,121,300) (15,608,922)
Operating lease payments KRR FRIA (52,455,152) (47,840,859)
Staff costs 8IKA 11 (78,167,700) (52,561,697)
Other operating expenses Hnae s (166,767,616) (156,714,736)
Share of losses of associates D {hE& QA EE (6,508,682) (4,251,761)
Share of losses of joint DEEEREEE
ventures 25 — (3,526,516)
Finance costs BB KA 13 (13,275,762) (16,559,226)
Loss before income tax BRATSH(FIX) 4R %A
(expense)/credit 518 9 (127,399,498) (46,775,163)
Income tax (expense)/credit et (Fsx) % 14 (1,526,529) 9,365,019
Loss for the year from TEEREREXRZER
continuing operations (128,926,027) (37,410,144)
Discontinued operation ERIEER
Loss for the year from REEDRIEEB ZEE
discontinued operation 10 (11,055,441) (46,084,420)
Gain on disposal of HEMRB AR K
subsidiaries 44(c) 79,446,079 —
Profit/(loss) for the year from  ARFEEERIFEEZER,
discontinued operation (f518) 68,390,638 (46,084,420)
Loss for the year rEEEHR (60,535,389) (83,494,564)

XA R EAR AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HE-T - NF=A=+—HILtFE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
Bzt BT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
(note 1)
(Bfst1)
Other comprehensive income H i 2 Uz
Items that will not be TEEHMSEEBB2EE
reclassified to profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of BEWE 2 M
properties 18 746,459 2,212,273
Tax expense related to EHEMMEES) 2 BIE
changes on revaluation of X
properties 39 (123,166) (365,025)
Items that may be HETREFIEEEZZ
reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss RR
Exchange differences arising  HEGINEKELZEH
on translating foreign =%
operations (2,018,877) 8,125,892
Available-for-sale investments, AI#IHERE  AF(EE
change in fair value b5y 26, 28 26,889,435 (10,571,573)
Available-for-sale investments, AIfiHERE  HiEREH
reclassify from equity to NEEER
profit or loss 26 449,120 10,571,573
Release of foreign exchange RSB AR T IME
reserve upon disposal of e
subsidiaries 44(c) (59,156,406) —
Release of foreign exchange REEA LR REEDINE
reserve upon disposal of fitt
joint ventures - 6,189,132
Other comprehensive income ZAFEH b2 HIKH
for the year, net of tax (EHNRHIE) (33,213,435) 16,162,272
Total comprehensive income ZAFEE2HENEALE
for the year (93,748,824) (67,332,292)
Loss for the year attributable FE{LEAF EEIE :
to:
Owners of the Company KABHER A (52,291,302) (78,395,277)
Non-controlling interests eI i (8,244,087) (5,099,287)
(60,535,389) (83,494,564)
—ZET-NFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BHEZZE-—NEF=RA=+T—HILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
Bzt B Vv
(Restated)
(&%)
(note 1)
(Bfst1)
Total comprehensive income EEAEEZHEINGGALE
for the year attributable
to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ =N (83,347,170) (61,404,818)
Non-controlling interests e i (10,401,654) (5,927,474)
(93,748,824) (67,332,292)
Loss per share from BEREXR 2 BRER
continuing operations 17
Basic (HK cents) ER(BAL) (20.26) (5.39)
Diluted (HK cents) 58 (L) (20.26) (5.39)
Earnings/(loss) per share CREEKCEBRER
from discontinued (E18)
operation 17
Basic (HK cents) EARCGEA)D 11.53 (7.70)
Diluted (HK cents) 58 GBIl 11.53 (7.70)
Loss per share from BEKSERORIEEKZ
continuing and BREER
discontinued
operations 17
Basic (HK cents) EARCGEA) (8.73) (13.09)
Diluted (HK cents) 58 GBIl (8.73) (13.09)

XA R A B R QA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REZ=ME=A=+—H

As at 31 March 2014

31 March 31 March 1 April
2014 2013 2012
—E-|E —T—=F —T—f
=A=+- =A=1—-H mA—H
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$
Hizt B BT BT
(Restated)
(E51)
(note 1)
(hat1)
Assets &E
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER S 18 74,859,922 168,792,296 159,847,706
Investment properties BEME 19 6,199,271 — 82,873,000
Payments for leasehold land held for BEELHABRE AR
own use under operating leases ST 20 - 185,742,412 200,840,319
Goodwill ﬁﬁ% \ 21 96,019,091 97,738,930 156,830,935
Intangible assets EREE 22 129,654,080 136,695,872 134,228,952
Interests in associates L UNTPA: ) 24 56,625,703 63,134,384 —
Interests in joint ventures - VNAPA 1 2(a) - — 24,213,968
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE 26 204,732,204 176,857,942 184,637,923
Deferred expenditure BIERY 27 - 3,190,298 4,563,214
Convertible loan notes HREREE 28 3,569,000 — —
Total non-currentassets  FABAERE 571659271 832,152,134 948,036,017
Current assets RBEE
Convertible loan notes RREFERE 28 - 4,449,740 —
Inventories FE 29 33,449,819 32,125,422 23,995,115
Trade and other receivables [EREF R EMFE 30 196,319,683 151,442,587 207,719,579
Deferred expenditure B 27 3,929,687 9,825,808 11,710,428
Amounts due from non-controlling RIS AR RN TR
shareholders 31 472,706 825,280 4,000
Amounts due from related parties el A E A\ LHUB 31 1,622,672 2,953,533 17,538,001
Amount due from an associate FEUHE 2 1 Al F0A 31 4,322,138 7,833 —
Cash and bank balances Be MR 32 173,820,122 187,756,090 181,628,925
413,936,827 389,386,293 442,596,048
Assets classified as held for sale PERKELECEE 33 - 1,083,609 102,075,776
Total curentassets  ABEEEE 413,936,827 390469902 544,671,824
Totalassets ~ HERAE 985,596,098 1222622036  1,492,707,841
Liabilities =X
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables EREF R AT 34 80,518,963 98,605,883 108,382,716
Amounts due to non-controlling R e
shareholders 31 97,794,653 105,877,403 102,494,172
Amounts due to related parties JENBEA TR 31 35,023,051 37,900,742 50,517,012
Bank borrowings BIEE 35 29,569,384 102,901,297 100,883,650
Other borrowings HibfEE 36 39,640,500 46,507,925 19,000,000
Convertible bonds B ES 37 - — 74,477,355
Deferred income EEWA 504,382 — —
Current tax liabilities BIIMEERE 3,113,333 5,607,650 12,193,237
286,164,266 397,400,900 467,948,142
Liabilities associated with assets HNBARELEEERR
classified as ZBfE
held for sale 33 - 545,486 448,581
Total current liabilities TEAEAE 286,164,266 397,946,386 468,396,723
—E - FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R-ZZE-—MFE=A=+—H

As at 31 March 2014

31 March 31 March 1 April
2014 2013 2012
—E-lmE _CEF-=% T
=R=1t—-H ==~ H mWA—H
Notes HKS HKS HKS
Hizt B BT BT
(Restated)
(&5)
(note 1)
(Het1)
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/(88)FE 127,772,561 (7,476,484) 76,275,101
Total assets less current liabilities ZEAEBERREEE 699,431,832 824,675,650  1,024,311,118
Non-current liabilities FREaE
Bank borrowings RITEE - — 10,855,768
Provision for long service payments R EIRESEE 38 42,373 42,373 224,689
Deferred income ETBA 4,227,134 — —
Deferred tax liabilities EIEHIERE 39 12,561,503 52,232,416 66,898,115
Total non-current liabilities FRBARLRE 16,831,010 52,274,789 77,978,572
Total liabilities B4R 302,995,276 450,221,175 546,375,295
NET ASSETS EERE 682,600,822 772,400,861 946,332,546
Capital and reserves attributable ~ AR FAHEFAELEZBRER
to owners of the Company it
Share capital RA 40 29,938,352 29,938,352 598,767,047
Reserves i@ . 655,506,241 736,865,368 289,672,251
Amounts recognised in other REM 2 EREED RN E
comprehensive income and HEREES BRRED
accumulated in equity relating to E7RDEE /&
non-current assets/disposal group Hhle e
classified as held for sale - — 25,130,925
685,444,593 766,803,720 913,570,223
Non-controlling interests FERER (2,843,771 5,597,141 32,762,323
TOTAL EQUITY ERaE 682,600,822 772,400,861 946,332,546
On behalf of the Board RERESFE
Cheng Yang Lei Lei
i E
Chairman Deputy Chief Executive Officer
TE BI7TIEAEH

XA R A B R QA
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R=ZE-ME=/A=+—H

As at 31 March 2014

2014 2013
—F-mF S
Notes HK$ HK$
BiaE BT BT
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
_Interests in subsidiaries | MEnrlzfEs 28 473,413,178 468,227,597
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from FEUL BB A B ZRTE
subsidiaries 23 770,085,955 874,867,703
Other receivables Hoth E Y FR T8 30 112,070,239 2,787,733
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMBEeEEIER 32 8,631,546 35,869,149
Total current assets ~ mB)AE#E 890,787,740 913,524,585
Total assets ~~~ ®E#@# 1364200918 1381752182
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H b e 3RIR 34 1,584,801 777,958
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JENTFHE A FI5KIE 23 732,126,551 657,448,855
Other borrowings HEMEE 36 26,640,500 34,125,098
Total current liabilities mENBELE 760,351,852 692,351,911
Net current assets ~~ WBEEF¥E 130435888 221,172,674
Total assets less current EEBERABERS
liabilities 603,849,066 689,400,271
NET ASSETS EERE 603,849,066 689,400,271
Capital and reserves R 1S
Share capital P& < 40 29,938,352 29,938,352
Reserves i 41 573,910,714 659,461,919
TOTAL EQUITY REEBE 603,849,066 689,400,271
On behalf of the Board REESFS
Cheng Yang Lei Lei
B N
Chairman Deputy Chief Executive Officer
FE BI7TIEAA %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

j:A?

P =53 e |

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Equity
Employee Other attributable
share-based  properties  Convertible Foreign  Investment to owners Non-
Share Share Other ~ Contributed compensation  revaluation bonds  exchange revaluation Accumulated of the  controlling Total
capital ~ premium resrve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Corlnnpany interests equity
‘ UL ,  ADTREL
Bx kiR iﬂhﬁﬁ fAR% BERMEE EMRE  E5EE  EGME REEGEE  ZEEE  RURe FERER  BRME
note 40} ey motedi] - fotedt) ot 41) (na edl) - [otedt) (no fe 41) (no e i) fote 41)
(hite))  (hiter) %?4/' (hia1)  (hitar) ‘,,/Lﬂz/, /W// m4/ \mJ//' (Hit41)
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT A A A A1 A A1 AT AT A1 A1 A BT
A1 April 2013 29938352 204217103 (87976712) 28784000 5698000 5,723,830 - 94,204,651 - (1,333,785,504) 766,803,720 5,597,141 772,400,861
Loss forthe year 1ERER - - - - - - - - - (2,291,302 (52,291,302)  (8,244,087) (60,535,389)
Gain on revaluaton of poperties  EfEHIEL
(note 16) - - - - - 746,459 - - - - 146,459 - 746,459
Exchange differences arising on
translating forsign operations - - - - - - - 138,690 - - 138690 (2,157,567)  (2,018,877)
Avalable-forsale ivestments,
change I fai value (note 26] - - - - - - - - 2688943 - 26889435 - 2688943
Avalable-for-sale ivestments,
reclassify from equity to profit
0rloss (not 26] - - - - - - - - 449120 - 49,120 - 449,120
Tx expense related to changes on
revaluation of properties
note 39) - - - - - [123166) - - - - [123166) - [123166)
Release of foreign exchange
reserve upon disposal of
subsicaris (note 44(c) - - - - - - - (59,156,406) - - (59,156,406) - (59,156,406)
Total comprehiensive income - - - - - 623,293 - (B9017T6) 27,338,555  (52.291,302) (83,347,170 (10401,654) (93,748,824)
Equity-sttled share-hased
ransactions (note 42) - - - - 937669 - - - - - 937669 - 937669
Share options forfeited (note 42) - - - - (5,698,000) - - - 5,698,000 - - -
Acquisition of additional interest in
a subsidary fnote 45(b) - - [7,388649) - - - - - - - (1388649) 2595302  (4,793,257)
Disposal of subsidiaies note 44(a)
(b}, el - - - - - - - - - - - (14528907) (14,528,907)
Capita contrbutons by non-
controling equty holders of
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - 13894257 13,804,257
At 31 March 2014 29938352 2,024217103  (95,365,361) 28784000 9376692 6,347,123 - 35,186,935 27,338,555 (1380,378,806) 685444593  (2,843,771) 682,600,822
At April 2012 598,767,047 2024217103 (2370308) 28784000 5453278 29007507 3813559 79,061,440 — [1,863,163.406) 913570223 32,762,303 946,332,546

Loss for the year - - - - - - - - — (183%,271) (78395277 (5,009,287) (83494,564)
(Gain on revaluation of properties

(note 16) - - - - - mm - - - - mm - M
Exchange differences rising on

translating foreign operations - - - - - - - 894079 - — 84079 [B8187) 812589
Available-for-le investments,

changg in fir value (not 26) - - - - - - - — (10571573 — (10671573 — (10571573
Avalable-forsale ivestments,

reclassify from equity to profit

0rloss (note 26) - - - - - - - — 10571513 — 10571573 — 10571513
Tax expense related to changes on

reva\ua\onotpropemesrnoewl - - - - - (365009 - - - - 36502 — (36502
Release of other properties i

reveluation reserve upon

disposal of properties - - - - — (25130929 - - - 251309 - - -
Release of foegnaxchange. ~ REEAELARAE)ERE

reserve upon disposal of jont

ventures - - - - - - - 618913 - - 6189132 - 618913
Total comprehensive income ke o - - - - - (23.283677) — 151432 —  (B3264350) (61404818 [5,927.474) (67,332,292
Equitysetiled sharebased RECENRARA R

transactions

note 42) - - - - UL - - - - - Wm - WM
Aoquision of subsidares note 43) WEX - - - - - - - - - — 17218580 17,218,980
Acaisition of additonal imerests i

in subsidiries (note 45(a}, c) - - (85,606407) - - - - - - — (85606407 (2509206 (88,115,633
Disposalof interests n & subsidry 1

(note 44(e) - - - - - - - - - — (35947062 (35,947,062)
Capital reorganisation (note 40fali) & (568,828,695 - - - - - - 568,828,695 - - -
Redermption of convertile bonds B 7]

(note 37) - - - - - — (3813559 - - 3813559 - - -
At31 March 2013 29938362 2024217103 (87.976712) 28784000 5698000 5723830 — 94,204,651 — [1,333,785,504) 766803720 5,597,141 772,400,861

XAEIRREBRA A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BHE-Z WE=R=1T—HILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
Bzt BT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
(note 1)
(Hiaz1)
Cash flows from operating REEBIRERE
activities
Net cash used in operations REXBA RS ¥R 47 (15,477,120) (78,551,061)
Interest received B A2 2,251,425 2,998,598
Tax paid [EANEAE (2,068,354) (1,604,870)
Net cash used in operating REEEMACHSTE
activities (15,294,049) (77,157,333)
Cash flows from investing REFBH2EERE
activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries, I EE M B A a (EHIRRET
net of cash acquired Wig 2R e) 43 - 54,361,618
Disposal of subsidiaries, net HE B A R (2 HBRAT
of cash disposed HEZRS) 44 152,364,462 47,715,333
Deposits for acquisition of WHENB AR ZEE
subsidiaries (110,000,000) —
Release of bank pledged R EIERTTHE IR F X
deposit — 3,700,830
(Increase)/decrease of ZEBRFIRITRSGM),
restricted cash at banks A (13,813,351) 2,806,501
Repayment from/(advance EIERRAG R ESR,
to) non-controlling (A FEFE PR AR ER 2 5K
shareholders 352,574 (825,280)
Repayment from/(advance B ALTER
to) related parties (MEEA LR 1,330,861 (2,953,533)
Purchase of property, plant BEWHE  BEREE
and equipment (29,035,891) (44,728,103)
Proceeds from disposal HEWE  BELRELEZ
of property, plant and Fri5 k18
equipment 163,693 —
Purchase of investment BEEREYE
properties (6,199,271) —
Investment of films in KERERER
progress (10,370,981) (15,558,645)
Proceeds from disposal of HEEERER
films in progress Fr5 308 3,873,499 —
Disposal of available-for-sale HETHEERE
investments 4,133,140 —
Deferred expenditure paid EELEM (3,844,412) (8,048,839)
Proceeds from disposal of HERELEEE B
assets held for sale FIA - 95,924,253
Net cash (used in)/generated REFE(FiA), BEE2
from investing activities REFHE (11,045,677) 132,394,135
—ZET-NFFR
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HEBRERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEZZTNF=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=F
Notes HK$ HK$
Bzt B BT
(Restated)
(&%)
(note 1)
(Hiaz1)
Cash flows from financing RMEETB2RERE
activities
Increase in bank loans RITEERE N 60,434,937 95,719,257
Early redemption of IRATER TR ES
convertible bonds - (79,876,273)
Repayment of bank loans EBERTEE (37,518,189) (75,346,469)
Interest paid EARFE (10,210,360) (12,287,246)
Acquisition of additional WM B A B 2 BIMER
interests in subsidiaries 45 (5,000,000) (23,205,900)
(Decrease)/increase in JERTRAE A T RRIE
amounts due to related CRA) /0
parties (41,290) 37,900,742
Bank overdraft advances EERIRITEL DN
repaid - (29,210,909)
Increase in other borrowings Hith g E1E hn 18,990,000 12,382,827
Repayment in other BEEMEE
borrowings (28,922,827) (19,000,000)
Net cash used in financing RMELZEAZESFEE
activities (2,267,729) (92,923,971)
Net decrease in cash and ReRELEEFERRDF
cash equivalents | (28,607,455) (37,687,169)
Cash and cash equivalents at RFHzBEERBESEEHE
beginning of year E] 146,994,834 182,656,714
Effect of exchange rate ERFHEIRS RIACEHE
changes on cash and HEZ#&
cash equivalents (145,616) 2,025,289
Cash and cash equivalents at RFRRERBELEEHE
end of year B 118,241,763 146,994,834
Analysis of the balances of RE&ERBELZEEEH 2&E
cash and cash equivalents Akl
Cash and cash equivalents FFARES RIRTTHES IR
included in cash and bank + MRS EEIEHR
balances 32 118,241,763 145,991,082
Cash and cash equivalents FFAREREEEZ RS
included in assets held for MIREFEIAR
sale 33 — 1,003,752
Cash and cash equivalents at ~RELKZBRERIAEEE
end of year 5B 118,241,763 146,994,834

XA R EAR AR

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Culture Landmark Investment Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in Bermuda. Its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its registered office and
principal place of business are at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and
Rooms 2501-2505, 25th Floor, China Resources
Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
respectively.

The Company is engaged in investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 23. The Company and its subsidiaries
are collectively referred to as the “"Group”.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
disposed its existing hotel operation business.
Accordingly, the comparative consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and the related
notes have been represented as if the operation
discontinued during the year had been discontinued
at the beginning of the comparative period.

Following the adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards 11 “Joint Arrangements”
which apply retrospectively, the accounting policy
for joint ventures, which are engaged in licence fee
collection business, has been changed. Accordingly,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2013, consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 April 2012,
consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended 31 March 2013 and related notes are
restated and represented.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

—REH
MEHEREERARIART DDA
RBEREFMK I ARERAR - H
BONREBBAERHMER DA ([HR
) b RRRzaEMPEERLGR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda » X &4
F B AN BB R 28 26 SR E
KE 251 2501-2505 = ©

ARBNEREER - EMBLRAIZE
EEBENMTE23 - ARAIREME L
BRI ANEE ]

RBE-_ZT-—NF=—A=1T—HIF
B AEBECHEERBBEER -
it AT AR A 2 R E R R ARRE M R
BEEY - WEFADKRIEEHRE R
BHIR LR Z -

PR B e P T BR A0 B 78 B 15 ¥R 15 2 R
FNHRIELELRHIE  GERRARE
HARERRER®) 28T BRREHR
goRAlt BHE_T—=F=A=+—
BEtFEzZHEAEERaER R-F
——HFUA-BZHEAMBRIE &
EZE—=F=ZA=+—HLFEZRK
EHRERERNMEBMECERERN

2% -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2013

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2009-2011
(Amendments) Cycle

Amendments to Presentation of Items of Other
HKAS 1 (Revised)  Comprehensive Income

Amendments to Government Loans
HKFRS 1

Amendments to Disclosures of Offsetting Financial

HKFRS 7 Assets and Financial Liabilities
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other

Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Except as explained below, the adoption of the
new/revised HKFRSs has no material impact
on the Group's financial statements.

XA WIRRE AR A A
| CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2013 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised)
— Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) required
the Group to separate items presented in
other comprehensive income into those that
may be reclassified to profit and loss in the
future and those that may not. Tax on items of
other comprehensive income is allocated and
disclosed on the same basis.

The Group has adopted the amendments
retrospectively for the financial year ended 31
March 2014. ltems of other comprehensive
income that may and may not be reclassified
to profit and loss in the future have been
presented separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, and the
comparative information has been restated
to comply with the amendments. As the
amendments affect presentation only, there
are no effects on the Group's financial position
or performance.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

2. BRMBERMBHREEN 2

(a)

R RETEBUBEREE
B — RZZ2-—=FWA-HEKX
ERH(E)

BB ERE 152 55T (K15
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BY 5 8 R MY &E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—Z-ME=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2013 (Continued)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial
Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model
for consolidation of all investee entities. An
investor has control when it has power over
the investee (whether or not that power
is used in practice), exposure or rights to
variable returns from the investee and the
ability to use the power over the investee
to affect those returns. HKFRS 10 contains
extensive guidance on the assessment of
control. For example, the standard introduces
the concept of “de facto” control where an
investor can control an investee while holding
less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights
in circumstances where its voting interest
is of sufficiently dominant size relative to
the size and dispersion of those of other
individual shareholders to give it power over
the investee. Potential voting rights are
considered in the analysis of control only
when these are substantive, i.e. the holder
has the practical ability to exercise them. The
standard explicitly requires an assessment
of whether an investor with decision making
rights is acting as principal or agent and also
whether other parties with decision making
rights are acting as agents of the investor.
An agent is engaged to act on behalf of and
for the benefit of another party and therefore
does not control the investee when it
exercises its decision making authority. The
accounting requirements in HKAS 27 (2008)
on other consolidation related matters are
carried forward unchanged. As a result of the
adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed
its accounting policy in determining whether it
has control over an investee and therefore is
required to consolidate that interest see (note
4(b)). The adoption of the standard does not
change any of the control conclusions reached
by the Group in respect of its involvement
with other entities as at 1 April 2013.

XA WIRRE AR A A
| CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2013 (Continued)

HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 have the
same basic characteristics as joint ventures
under HKAS 31. Joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. Where the Group has rights to the
assets and obligations for the liabilities of the
joint arrangement, it is regarded as a joint
operator and will recognise its interests in
the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
arising from the joint arrangement. Where the
Group has rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement as a whole, it is regarded as having
an interest in a joint venture and will apply
the equity method of accounting. HKFRS 11
does not allow proportionate consolidation. In
an arrangement structured through a separate
vehicle, all relevant facts and circumstances
should be considered to determine whether the
parties to the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement. Previously, the
existence of a separate legal entity was the key
factor in determining the existence of a jointly
controlled entity under HKAS 31.

Prior to 1 April 2013, the Group’s interests
in joint ventures were proportionately
consolidated.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014
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BY 5 8 R MY &E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2013 (Continued)

HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements (Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 11 “Joint
Arrangements” on 1 April 2013. This resulted
in the Group changing its accounting policy
for its interests in joint arrangements. The
Group also adopted HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”, HKFRS 12
“Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”
and consequential amendments to HKAS
28 "Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures” and HKAS 27 "Separate Financial
Statements” at the same time.

Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor
has rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group has assessed
the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures.

The Group has applied the new policy for
interests in joint ventures retrospectively in
accordance with the transition provisions
of HKFRS 11. The Group recognised its
investment in joint ventures at the beginning
of the earliest period presented (1 April 2012),
as the total of the carrying amounts of the
assets and liabilities previously proportionately
consolidated by the Group. This is the deemed
cost of the Group's investments in joint
ventures for applying equity accounting.

XA WIRRE AR A A
| CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2013 (Continued)

HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group. The change in accounting policy has
been applied as from 1 April 2012. There is
no impact on the Group's net assets for the
periods presented.

Since the Group obtained control over joint
ventures on 11 January 2013 as mentioned
in 2013 annual report, these joint ventures
have become subsidiaries of the Group as at
31 March 2013 and the adoption of HKFRS
11 has no effect on the consolidated financial
statements in current year presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2013 (Continued)

HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements (Continued)

The tables below show the effect from
the change of accounting policy on the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 March 2013, the
consolidated statement of financial position as
of 1 April 2012 and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year ended 31 March

2. RSB BREER 2

(a)

R RETEBUBEREE
B — RZZ2-—=FWA-HEKX
ERH(E)

BEBYBHREERNEIIH — &
EZH(E)

TRETEITRREPHBE_F
—=ZF A=+ -BLEFEZL
BEEKAER R_T—-FHA
—RAZHGEUBHRRREBE—F
—ZF=ZA=t—BLFEZHAE
RERBRZTE - WHEBRER
S(BR)TETE -

2013. There was no effect on the earnings/
(loss) per share.

Impact on consolidated statement of HRE2HRER2FE
comprehensive income
Increase/(decrease) #hn, G

2013

—T—=F

HK$

BT
Turnover S (7,807,837)
Other income and gains EmUA R e (739,754)
Other operating expenses B (6,447,097)
Staff costs B TR (5,491,262)
Share of losses of joint ventures SMEAEAEEE 3,526,516
Loss before income tax expense MRETEBBEZAIEE 135,748
Income tax expense FrsfiA > (135,748)
Loss for the year AEEEFER —

XA WIRRE AR A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2013 (Continued)

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

2. BRMBERMBHREEN 2

(a) BREAHTET BT EBUBRERE
B — RZB-—Z=ZFNA—-HEX

EXM(E)
HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements (Continued) EEYUBHEEREIIH — &
ELH(E)
Impact on consolidated statement of HEREWERRERZHE
financial position
Increase/(decrease) #hn, Cra)
1 April 2012
—E—F
MA—H
HKS
BT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment e N
— Cost or valuation — AR HE (5,528,904)
Property, plant and equipment E N e g
— Accumulated depreciation and impairment — R ERRE (5,528,904)
Intangible assets BV EE
— Cost — AR (139,427,746)
Intangible assets BEE
— Accumulated amortisation and impairment — BEITE RRE (139,427,746)
Interests in joint ventures BENR) R 24,213,968
Total non-current assets  ER@EEEE 24,213,968
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables FEUE B R H At IR (3,230,158)
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHER (59,664,818)
Total current assets MEEERE (62,894,976)
Total assets EEHE (38,681,008)
Liabilities aE
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERTER R HEALZIR (41,255,816)
Current tax liabilities RITHIBAE (5,457)
Total current liabilities mB)BEEE (41,261,273)
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 2,580,265
Total liabilities BEHEE (38,681,008)
—E - FFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2013 (Continued)

HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements (Continued)

Impact on consolidated statement of cash

2. RSB BREER 2

(a)

R RETEBUBEREE
B — RZZ2-—=FWA-HEKX
ERH(E)
BEBYBHREERNEIIH — &
gLH(E)

HEERERERZVE

flows
Increase/(decrease) #hn, (G d)
2013
—T—=%
HK$
BT
Net cash used in operating activities KEXEBIA R 55 10,292,306
Net cash generated from investing activities WEEYEE 2 FE 19,871,698
Net cash used in financing activities BEEB A IR R —
Effect of foreign exchange rate change PE R ) v Fo 2 (1,031,695)
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year FHzRekREFEEE (8,547,697)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

FrezB\eReEHEEAR —

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent
the disclosures requirements about
interests in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements. It also introduces new
disclosure requirements, including those
related to unconsolidated structured entities.
The general objective of the standard is
to enable users of financial statements to
evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting
entity’s interests in other entities and the
effects of those interests on the reporting
entity's financial statements.

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2013 (Continued)

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests Other
Entities (Continued)

HKFRS 12 disclosures are provided in note 24.
As the new standard affects only disclosure,
there is no effect on the Group's financial
position and performance.

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of
guidance on how to measure fair value when
it is required or permitted by other standards.
The standard applies to both financial and
non-financial items measured at fair value
and introduces a fair value measurement
hierarchy. The definitions of the three
levels in this measurement hierarchy are
generally consistent with HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines
fair value as the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e.
an exit price). The standard removes the
requirement to use bid and ask prices for
financial assets and liabilities quoted in an
active market. Rather the price within the
bid-ask spread that is most representative
of fair value in the circumstances should be
used. It also contains extensive disclosure
requirements to allow users of the financial
statements to assess the methods and inputs
used in measuring fair values and the effects
of fair value measurements on the financial
statements. HKFRS 13 can be adopted early
and is applied prospectively.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

2. BRMBERMBHREEN 2

(a)

R RETEBUBEREE
B — RZ2-—=FWA-HEKX
ERH(E)

EEUMBHRELEAF 129 — K
BREMER i (F)

BREVBRELENE 125N
24 ARERNEFZENE -
I H AR B 2 B FIR R R A

A=
T o

ERHBRERYE 135 — 2
FREHE

FRMBREERFE1IRIEHRE
[88 20 fr] 1 L 2 I 82 5 5 B B
AEAFEEZEHEIIKER - &%
EABEARN R R HEESE 2/
A RFFHBEE - LS ARFE
BFFEFH - LA EFRH =(EE
Mz ERE—REF BN HRELER
F7RIeMTA : REI-H-F
BB HREERE1BRAGAFE
BRER/ETH2EENTER
EITZAFR ST HEEREMEER
SERBEMN 2 BR(EIFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-MFE=A=1+—H
31 March 2014

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2013 (Continued)

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement
(Continued)

HKFRS 13 did not materially affect any
fair value measurements of the Group’s
assets and liabilities and therefore has no
effect on the Group’s financial position and
performance. The standard requires additional
disclosures about fair value measurements
and these are included in notes 18, 19, 26 and
28. Comparative disclosures have not been
presented in accordance with the transitional
provisions of the standard.

In addition, the Group has early adopted the
amendments to HKAS 36 which is described
below in the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 36 — Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets

The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
The amendments limit the requirements to
disclose the recoverable amount of an asset or
cash generating unit (CGU) to those periods in
which an impairment loss has been recognised
or reversed, and expand the disclosures where
the recoverable amount of impaired assets
or CGUs has been determined based on fair
value less costs of disposal.

XA R EAR AR

| CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

2.
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(a)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group's financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments Offsetting Financial Assets and
to HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2010-2012
(Amendments) Cyclé’

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2011-2013
(Amendments) Cycle?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning, or

transactions occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting
requirements by adding appliance guidance
to HKAS 32 which clarifies when an entity
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off” and when a gross settlement mechanism
is considered equivalent to net settlement.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

2. BRMBERMBHREEN 2

(b)
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Bt 7% R M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified
into financial assets measured at fair value
or at amortised cost depending on the
entity's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets.
Fair value gains or losses will be recognised
in profit or loss except for those non-trade
equity investments, which the entity will a
choice to recognise the gains and losses
in other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9
carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss , where the amount of
change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities.

XA R EAR AR

| CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and
2011-2013 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to a number of standards where they
are currently unclear. Among them HKAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment” has been
amended to clarify how the gross carrying
amount and accumulated depreciation are
treated where an entity uses the revaluation
model. The carrying amount of the asset is
restated to revalued amount. The accumulated
depreciation may be adjusted in a manner
consistent with the revaluation of the carrying
amount of the asset and the accumulated
depreciation is adjusted to equal the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses.

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of these
pronouncements and the Directors so far
concluded that they are not yet in a position
to quantify the effects of application of other
new/revised HKFRSs on the Group’s financial
statements.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

3!

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
"HKFRSs")
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
“HKICPA™) and
the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong

referred to as the issued

Public Accountants (the

Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for
certain properties, convertible loan notes
and available-for-sale investments, which are
measured at revalued amount or fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Non-current assets or disposal group classified
as assets/liabilities held for sale is stated at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same
as the functional currency of the Company.

XA R EAR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014
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Bt 7% R M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair
value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

XA R EAR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising
from business combinations whose acquisition
dates preceded 1 April 2010 (i.e. the date the
Group first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been
accounted for in accordance with the transition
requirements in the standard. Such balances
are not adjusted upon first application of the
standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of
such consideration are treated as adjustments
to the cost of these business combinations
and are recognised as part of goodwill.
Changes in the Group's interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (1) power
over the investee, (2) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and (3) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be
a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment loss. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither
a subsidiary nor a joint venture. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over
those policies. Associates are accounted for
using the equity method whereby they are
initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group's share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that
losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is
an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions
between the Group and its associates are
recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The
investor’'s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above
the fair value of the Group’'s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the associate and the
entire carrying amount of the investment is
subject to impairment test, by comparing the
carrying amount with its recoverable amount,
which is higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell.
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Bt 7% R M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement
where there is a contractual arrangement
that confers joint control over the relevant
activities of the arrangement to the Group
and at least one other party. Joint control is
assessed under the same principles as control
over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint
arrangements as either:

° Joint ventures: where the Group has
rights to only the net assets of the joint
arrangement; or

° Joint operations: where the Group has
both the rights to assets and obligations
for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in
joint arrangements, the Group considers:

° The structure of the joint arrangement;

° The legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;

° The contractual terms of the joint
arrangement agreement; and

° Any other facts and circumstances
(including any other contractual
arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint
ventures in the same manner as investments
in associates (i.e. using the equity method —
see note 4(c)).
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fait value of the Group's
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the
investment in joint venture. Where there
is objective evidence that the investment
in a joint venture has been impairment the
carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint
operations by recognising its share of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in
accordance with its contractually rights and
obligations.

Goodwill and gain on a bargain purchase

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being
the excess of the aggregate of a consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests over the fair value
of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed.

Where the fair value of identifiable
assets acquired, liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess, which is the
gain on a bargain purchase, is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-

assessment.
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Bt 7% R M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Goodwill and gain on a bargain purchase
(Continued)

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings, other than hotel
property, are stated at revalued amount, being
the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. As the fair value of the land cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, the land portion is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease. Fair value is
determined by the Directors of the Company
based on independent valuations which
are performed periodically. The valuations
are on the basis of open market value. The
Directors of the Company review the carrying
value of the leasehold land and buildings and
adjustment is made where they consider that
there has been a material change. Increases in
value arising on revaluation are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under other properties revaluation
reserve. Decreases in value arising on
revaluation are first offset against increases
on earlier valuations in respect of the same
property and are thereafter recognised in
profit or loss. Any subsequent increases are
recognised in profit or loss up to the amount
previously charged and thereafter to the other
properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal of leasehold land and buildings,
the relevant portion of the other properties
revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is released from the other
properties revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.
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Bt 7% R M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The hotel property and other items of property,
plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. The useful lives
are as follows:

Hotel buildings in PRC
Leasehold land and

5 years

40 years
buildings

Leasehold improvements  Over lease terms

of 2-16 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3-5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 3-5 years

Yacht 10 years

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and
its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit
or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“ET-mF=A=+—H

31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value at the date of
acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line
basis over their useful lives as follows:

Provision of copyright 8 years
licence fees settlement
and collection services
Provision of intellectual 11 years
property enforcement
services
Golf club memberships 12 years,
indefinite
Customer relationship and 10 years

customer contracts

Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

4., FEESTTHE®)

(g) BEEE

(i)

BURBZEFEEE

B WE 2 B EERKA
VAR - REK A HtH IR
BBV EEZRARWE
BHzAFEE - Hi&2 A
BERAERFHZELEE
TyIRBCAN R RTE M & R 1B
HEEE R -

H5H O R AT R E R A B A
BARARHREAE

RERERFE 8%
SR
%

PRt E R
REARTS

114

= R ERELEED
g

BEFRARELEP
BH

1246 -
PR HR
105

AERAERFHZETLE
B Ty AR AE ] R AE R E
EHEHAR -



Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts, irrespective of whether there is
any indication that they may be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, to the extent
that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite lives are
tested for impairment when there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired
(note 4(t)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

(i)

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment property
is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change
therein recognised in profit or loss.

Payments for leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases

Payments for leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases represent up-
front payments to acquire long-term interests
in lessee-occupied properties in PRC. These
payments are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on a straight-line
basis as an expense.

Deferred expenditure

Deferred expenditure represents non-
refundable payments to copyright holders for
their share of operating profits from the co-
operation business to collect licence fees
from karaoke operators in PRC. The deferred
expenditure is initially recognised at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, deferred
expenditure is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for deferred expenditure
is provided on a straight-line basis over the co-
operation period.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense,
over the term of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“ET-mF=A=+—H

31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial
assets at initial recognition, depending
on the purpose for which the asset
was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and all other
financial assets are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets. Regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial
asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within
the time frame established generally
by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services
to customers (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual
monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(I)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale investments

These assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not included
in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these
assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments, which are recognised in
profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unguoted
equity instruments, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment
losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“ET-mF=A=+—H

31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(I)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

° granting concession to a debtor
because of debtor's financial
difficulty; and

° it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(I)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of
financial asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When any
part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectable, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant
financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in
the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For available-for-sale investments

Where a decline in the fair value
constitutes objective evidence of
impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss.

An impairment losses on available-for-
sale debt investments are subsequently
reversed in profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment,
any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment
that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss is not reversed.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(I)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

Financial liabilities are initially recognised
at fair value, net of directly attributable
transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised within “finance costs” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Gains or losses recognised in the
profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the
Company that contain both the liability
and conversion option components
are classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.
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Bt 7% R M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—T-EE=A=1-H

31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(I)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of
the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest
of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of
the issue of the convertible bonds and
the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the loan
notes into equity, is included in equity as
convertible bonds reserve.

the liability
component of the convertible bonds

In subsequent periods,

is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option
to convert the liability component into
ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds reserve
until the embedded option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated
in convertible bonds reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share
Where the

option remains unexercised at the expiry

premium as appropriate).

dates, the balance stated in convertible
bonds reserve will be released to the
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised upon conversion or expiration
of the option.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(I)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

When the Company exercises call option
to redeem the convertible bonds which is
inherent in the terms of the convertible
bonds and has been allocated to the
liability component as it is considered
to be a closely related embedded
derivative, the consideration paid and any
transactions costs thereof is allocated to
the liability component of the convertible
bonds at the date of redemption. The
difference between the consideration
paid for the redemption of the liability
component, and its carrying amount at
the date of redemption is recognised in
profit or loss when the convertible bonds
are redeemed.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(I)  Financial instruments (Continued)
(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial
asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer
meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised
when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

(m) Non-current assets held for sale and
disposal groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale when:

° they are available for immediate sale;

° management is committed to a plan to
sell;
° it is unlikely that significant changes to

the plan will be made or that the plan
will be withdrawn;

° an active programme to locate a buyer
has been initiated,

° the asset or disposal group is being
marketed at a reasonable price in relation
to its fair value; and

o a sale is expected to complete within 12
months from the date of classification.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

(n)

Non-current assets held for sale and
disposal groups (Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups
classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of:

° their carrying amount immediately prior
to being classified as held for sale in
accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy; and

o fair value less costs to sell.

Following their classification as held for
sale, non-current assets (including those in a
disposal group) are not depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during
the year are included in profit or loss up to the
date of disposal.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the first-
in first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from licence fee collection business
is recognised when services are performed.

Compensation for infringement of music
licence is recognised when the right to
receive the compensation is established and
it is probable that the Group will receive the
compensation.

Hotel room revenue is recognised when hotel
rooms are occupied.

Revenue from exhibition and related service is
recognised when the exhibition is completed
and related services are rendered.

Rental income from operating leases/facility
sharing income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease/
agreement.

Revenue from entertainment services
including artist management is recognised
when services are rendered.

Revenue from musical works is recognised
when the Group’s entitlement to such
payments has been established which is upon
the delivery of the master copy or materials to
the customers.

Film distribution fee income is recognised
when the master materials have been
delivered.

Revenue from restaurants is recognised when
food and beverages are sold and services are
provided.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which is at the time of delivery and the title is
passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis
on the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current
tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled
and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income taxes (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred
tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of these investment properties
at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities
in currencies other than the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
they operate (the “functional currency”)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense
items of foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
at the average exchange rates for the vyear,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating, to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All
assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in the profit
or loss of group entities’ separate or individual
financial statements on the translation of
long-term monetary items forming part of
the Group’s net investment in the foreign
operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised
in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to the profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the
foreign exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected costs of profit-sharing and
bonus payments are recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for profit-sharing and bonus
plans are expected to be settled within
12 months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they
are settled.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
on the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment
of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“ET-mF=A=+—H

31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Post-employment benefits

Retirement benefits to employees
are provided through several defined
contribution plans.

The Group adopts a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the "MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong
for all employees of its subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries but subject to
a cap in accordance with the statutory
requirement and are recognised in
profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The Group has recorded provisions for
long service payments for employees
who had completed the required number
of years of service under Hong Kong's
Employment Ordinance for whom
the Group is obligated to pay long
service payment on termination of their
employment.

The employees of the Group's
subsidiaries that operate in PRC are
required to participate in a government-
managed retirement benefit schemes.
These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a fixed cost per employee
to the government-managed retirement
benefit schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become
payable.
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to
employees, the fair value of the options at the
date of grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share-based
compensation reserve within equity. Non-
market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of
each reporting period so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised over
the vesting period is based on the number
of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair
value of the options granted. As long as
all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a
charge is made irrespective of whether the
market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure
to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options
are modified before they vest, the increase
in the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification,
is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to
persons other than employees, the profit or
loss is charged with the fair value of goods
or services received unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised.
For cash settled share based payments, a
liability is recognised at the fair value of the
goods or services received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

° intangible assets;

° payments for leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases;

° investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, except for those
classified as held for sale;

° deferred expenditure; and

° film rights and film in progress.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater
of the fair value less costs to sell and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(u)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that HKFRS.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, which will probably
result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEESTEHE®)
(Continued)
(v) Related parties (v) BEAZL

yd

(i) A person or a close member of that

person’s family is related to the Group if

that person:

(i)

fiZ B ALTHRTIER
Az ATHZBALTZE
BRBK B KRS ENEHE

BRAE -
(a) has control or joint control of the (a) HAREFEGES| T
Group; A4
(b) has significant influence over the b) HAEEBEEATE
Group; or 55 5%
(c) is a member of key management (c) ARNEEHIAATTR

personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions apply:

(ii)

HEE NHBERER
8 AN A5 23 SN 5% [ A R

==
B

’

Al TEEEASR -

A%

e

(a) The entity and the Group are (a) ZEREHAAEEBER—
members of the same group (which EEZKE AR
means that each parent, subsidiary SRA) - B AR KA
and fellow subsidiary is related to RWBABIEAEREE):
the others);

(b) One entity is an associate or joint by —ERARES—EBH
venture of the other entity (or BNRIHE ERA(H
an associate or joint venture of a AE—E£EKE QA
member of a group of which the A /NI R /N
other entity is a member); A M&zs—EEAL

EBEZKERA]) :

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of (c) “EFEBVHYAER—%F=
the same third party; i =-—/NCIE

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a d —([IEERE=-EEZ
third entity and the other entity is GERRI RS —EBA
an associate of the third entity; ZE-ZERBIIBED

E—J .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)

(ii)

An entity is related to the Group if

any of the following conditions apply:
(Continued)

(e)

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(i);

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected

to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or

domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or

domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that

person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

(x)

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted
from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are recognised as deferred income in
consolidated statement of financial position
and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset.

XA WIRRE AR A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y)

Film rights and films in progress
Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less any provision
for impairment losses. Upon the release of
the pre-recorded audio visual products and the
materials, film rights are amortised at rates
calculated to write off the costs in proportion
to the expected revenue from exhibition and
distribution of audio visual products. Such
rates are on a systematic basis, with reference
to the projected revenue and the underlying
licence periods, and are subject to annual
review by the management.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Costs include
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. Provision are made for costs which
are in excess of the expected future revenue
generated by these films. Costs of films are
transferred to film rights upon completion.

At the end of each reporting period, both
internal and external market information
is considered to assess whether there is
any indication that film rights and films in
progress are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amount of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-MFE=A=1+—H
31 March 2014

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Estimates are evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations

of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances. The key assumptions

that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below:

(a)

(b)

Fair value of investment properties and
leasehold land and buildings

The fair value of the investment properties and
leasehold land and buildings are determined
by independent valuers on an open market
value for existing use basis. In making their
judgment, consideration has been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of reporting
period, by reference to recent market
transactions and appropriate capitalisation
rates based on an estimation of the rental
income. These estimates are regularly
compared to actual market data and actual

transactions entered into by the Group.

Useful
equipment

lives of property, plant and

Management determines the estimated useful
lives of the property, plant and equipment.
Management determines the hotel building in
PRC would be redeveloped after 5 years when
there is opportunity. Management will revise
depreciation charges when useful lives differ
from previous estimates.

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(c)

(e)

Impairment test of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in
use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Impairment loss on intangible assets

Determining whether an intangible asset is
impaired requires an estimation of the future
cash flow and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

Impairment loss on loans and receivables

The policy for impairment of loans and
receivables of the Group is based on the
evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of the loans and receivables and
on management’'s judgment. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these loans
and receivables, including the current
creditworthiness of each customer. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional
impairment may be required.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—Z-ME=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EXREHEREEMTRE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EMERIERE)

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(f)  Impairment loss on deferred expenditure (f) EZEMZZBEEIR
The carrying amounts of deferred expenditure BT 2 REETESER - U
are reviewed periodically in order to assess KB eEe S HKERRE
whether the recoverable amounts have HE - WBEHHIEREEETZ
declined below the carrying amounts. These EEEZEARRAEVEEEK
assets are tested for impairment whenever O Aoz EEEETRER
events or changes in circumstances indicate o WEERBE T YK RIREAES
that their recorded carrying amounts may BB =R U E £ %8 - FAEEE A Y [E
not be recoverable. When such a decline has SESEMNSEE  REBR
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced BAFBERIRA S Z2ER  BEER
to recoverable amount. The Group uses all S REREBREREL 215t -
readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions.

SEGMENT REPORTING 6. DEHRE

Management determines operating segments based
on the reports regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker, which is the Board, in
assessing performance and allocating resources.
The chief operating decision maker considers
the business primarily on the basis of the types
of services supplied by the Group. The Group is
currently organised into six operating divisions —
licence fee collection business, exhibition-related
business, property sub-leasing business, property
development and investment, entertainment
business and food and beverages.

XA WIRRE AR A A
| CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZF-mF=A=1"H

31 March 2014

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEEHmEE)
Principal activities are as follows: FEXEBAT
Licence fee collection —  provision of karaoke music product BHEER — SHESGREEEEREEE
business copyright licence fees settlement g 7 e (hEE—EFRTE

and collection services and B EGITRER)EER
intellectual property enforcement B8 2B OK B4
services in respect of karaoke EmMRERERROKE
music product copyright in PRC SERRERTELE
as managed and administered by B 2 AR DA T 2tk S ot
the China Audio-Video Copyright ERBERS

Association, the sole official
recognised national audio-video
organisation in PRC

Exhibition-related —  organising all kinds of exhibition RERBES — EHSEREEENEE
business events and meeting events BB

Property sub-leasing —  sub-leasing of properties in PRC MESWEE — RAEIENE
business

Entertainment —  provision of artist and talent IREER — RESAREEATEUR
business management and entertainment R EE

related business

Property development —  development of real properties and MEZER — EERNEREERENE
and investment leasing of investment properties BE

Food and beverages —  sale of food and beverages and E8 — HELZRNBEER

restaurant operations

The Group was also involved in the hotel operation AEFE I EEIE TS o B 1087
business. During the year, the Group ceased the it REBERFERNLIDBEER -

hotel operation business as detailed in note 10.

—ZET-NFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—ZT-mE=A=+—H
31 March 2014

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEEHmEE)

Segment information is presented below: SEERZEINMOT :

(a) Information about reportable segment (a) EFBHUTHESEWEZE  BARE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities E-EENEBZERREMESR
and other information

2014
Z8-p%
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
sREEER BRLER
Property
License fee  Exhibition- Property development Inter-
collection related  sub-leasing Entertainment and  Foodand  segment Hotel
business business business business investment beverages elimination  Subtotal  operation Total
FERER B8 g E HEH
hEER  BEER AEER nesE R&E #® biE ] Mt ERER 58
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
A A A ¥-73 -7 #r b/ b/ A7 A
Reportable segment revenue TREAENE
External sales e 87012992 66243406 64895784 3152388 - WA — 2447080 12,489,056 236,736,097
Inter-segment sales AREHE - - - - - BT (284300) = - B
87012992 66243406 6489784 3152388 - 306818 (284347) 204247041 12,489,056 236,736,097
Reportable segment (lss|/profit REGRERATRE
before income tax expense A5(5R) /i WTEEH  BIBI  (4BIAY  4ETAE @AW (100984 — UETAIE B0EB 2216512
Other segment information AftpEER
Interest income HERA 842,79 7267 13,29 8 - 90 - 10887 — 100887
Interest expenses RS 3250 — 0177108 - - - — 10210359 — 10210359
Depreciation of property, plant and % BERIESE
equipment 2842128 662806 11,167,033 181,851 - 997,289 — 15871107 139124 16,010,231

Amortisation of payments for leasehold &R %HEZEW

land helc for own use under BEHINRE

operating leases B - - - - - - - — 12053 120539
Amortisation of intangible assets SRAEIRY 12386256 3178240 = - - - — 1536449 — 15564496
Amortsation of deferred expendire  ERERZEH 12,930,831 - - - - - — 1293083 - 1908

Gain on disposal of property, plantand ~~ HEHIE - BERGREZ
equipment Y& 157207 - - - - - - 157,207 - 157207

Impairment loss on property, plantand 1%~ BERGEZAE
equipment gk - - 6,263,276 - - 2430288 — 8693564 — 8693564

;

XA AR E B R QA
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- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z-mFE=A=1—H
31 March 2014

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEHmEH)

(a) Information about reportable segment (a) EEUTHRESEKRRE  BANIE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities B -EERABEZERNRAEMER
and other information (Continued) (&

2014
“%-RE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
1 BRLER
Property
License fee  Exhibition- Property development
collection related  sub-leasing Entertainment and  Foodand Inter-segment Hotel
business business busingss busingss investment  beverages  elimination  Subtotal  operation Total
HEER &R 0% NX3RR P58

hRRE EERE AERR p4sR R £ i Mt EERE a8
HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
# # b7 b7 b7 # # # # #

Impairment loss on trade and other BHERREGE RERR

fegeivables 546,125 - 6500 - - - -G8 B 1]
Share of losses of associates AMBELAEE - - - 608682 - - — 650868 — 6508682
(Loss)lgain on disposalof subsiclaries  HEREAFZ(EE)/ - — (12048208 9200897 - - — 8759 ToMB0T9 6598480
Waiver of amount dug to a related party ~ BEEREENL5E - — 2840 - - - — 28340 [ ]
Reportable segment assets TREAREE BB 6154688 179G45T81  B3U6859 121076043 36380867 — 815283246 — 815263246

Expenditure fo reportable segment non- ~ TREAEERGEEVER

current assets 3,604,561 593,238 1889738 - 11%80m - - 30133199 - 3013319
Reportable segment liabilities THEARER 169183611 18482656 88167400  4.9727% - 2669475 - 1834157 — 28341937
—ZET-NFFR
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31 Ma rch 2014
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. ZEHmER)

(a) Information about reportable segment (a) EEUTHRESEKRERE  BFNIE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities B -EERABEZENRAEMER
and other information (Continued) (&

203
32§
Discontinued
Commumg operations operation
HREER idless
License fee Exhibition- Property Property
collection related subleasing  Entertainment  development Foodand  Intersegment Hotel
%gr%nge% business business business ~ and investment beverages elimination Sub-total operation Total
‘ T&%%i% BERE:E  MRAERR 5532 DRREREE i ARRGH i BERR %
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
#r AT T B # A A A A
Restated) (Restated) (Resmed]
(&51) (&51) £j1)
fnote 1) note 1) note 1l
1) (1) 1)
Reportable segment revenue THEAENE
External saes e 56,850,436 78237303 75,486,604 11,762,140 40m318 3,664,562 — 130278363 58,416,246 288,694,609
Intersegment seles AEREE - - - - - 144,105 144,105) - - -

56,860,436 78,237,303 75,486,604 11,762,140 4m318 3,808,667 (144108 230278363 56416246 268,694,609

Reportable segment profitoss] bfore RESRERHTRENE
i /(58

income tax credit A 41612138 2,202,168 (977,548) 897,148 11,341,638 (6,315,462) - 48,760,082 (49,033,007 (272,926
Other segment information EhoEER
Interest income FlBkA M4t 57,176 163,934 1% 109 108 - 392903 - 392903
Interest expenses fleRz 699,671 - 10,666,225 191,216 - - - 11,567,112 - 11,567,112
Depreciaton of property, plant and equipment 0% HERRELAE 197174 490952 14354006 174,631 1113 612827 - 17,856,432 15749123 3360555
Amortisaton of payments for leasehold land BETERNREL

held for own use under operating leases BERELHA ES - - - - - - - - 4,044,898 4,044,898
Amortisaon of rtange assets EVAEAE 11,781,148 3178240 - - - 116,883 — B0 B 7 ¥l
Amortsafon of efered expendiure jilvd 11306375 - - - - - - 13637 - 113637
Loss on disposalof progerty, plnt and equpment %1%+ BER#EZER 36,386 - - - - - - 3,386 5,268 101,654
Impaiment loss on property, plant and equipment 9%+ BERREZHEFE - - - - - - - - 915,584 915,584
Impaiment loss on payments forleasehod lnd ~ BESEELEEL

held for own use under operating leases BERE AR RBEE - - - - - - - - 11794347 11794347
mpaimment loss on tede and otherrecehles B EHRERHA AEER - - 5037349 - - - - 5,037,349 - 5037349
Shae o osss of assoctes AEBELTEE - - - 4,251,761 - - - 4251761 - 4251761
Share of losses of ot ventures AheERAER 3526516 - - - - - - 3526516 - 3526516
(in on & bargain purchase on acquision of LEDE b

subsidiries 36,077,025 - - - - - - 36,077,026 - 36,077,025
(5in on step acquisition of ot ventures FNERENT NG 5015611 - - - - - - 5015611 - 5015611
(Gain on disposal of subsiaries HERRAT bE - - - 6,482,229 1415710 - - 13,897,939 - 13,897,939
Gain on disposel ofnon-curent asets held for e~ B HEE B2 REEE U - - - - 5,770,688 - - 5,770,688 - 5,770,688
Reportable segment assets TREAREE 360,943,759 70,548,822 311,300,987 85,039,699 - 38,840,018 - 866,663,265 185,277,606 1,061,960,891

Expenditure fo eportable segmentnon<urent— TRESEHEHEE 2 BR
assets 12,269,007 1,738,364 25,343,654 2289120 - 3730848 - 15,360,993 130,463 15,491,456
v Reportable segment liblities TRENEER 161,699,328 2470179 199,911,414 6,464,748 1,359,027 - 394,136,311 53,033,308 447,169,619

XA AR E B R QA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZF-mF=A=1"H

31 March 2014

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEEHmEE)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit (b) HWHREDPFEEFHREE - EERE
or loss, assets and liabilities BZHER
Loss before income tax (expense)/credit FEEEE B RATEH (B %)
from continuing operations HRATE A
2014 2013
—E-mNFE —T—=fF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(&E51)
(note 1)
(Btet 1)
Reportable segment (loss)/profit FEICE TS 2 BRFTIS
before income tax (expense)/credit  (FIZ), K %Al
from continuing operations ARENE(EE),EF (46,174,126) 48,760,082
Unallocated realised gain on disposal HERHEERE 7 RKDEE
of available-for-sale investments IR W 2,378,140 —
Unallocated interest income and R ERFEWA R EMIA
other income 6,813,887 5,955,194
Unallocated impairment loss on Y HEREEZARDE
property plant and equipment BB E 1R (147,416) —
Unallocated impairment loss on AN ERE 2RO ERE
available-for-sale investments EiE (449,120) (10,571,573)
Unallocated finance costs R B A& R A (3,065,402) (5,002,114)
Unallocated staff costs RO E TR (33,119,507) (22,258,148)
Loss on early redemption of IRAIEL TR ESR 2 BB
convertible bonds - (1,742,037)
Unallocated rent, rates and ROBEHEE  EMREREE
management fee (15,566,822) (13,084,667)
Unallocated depreciation of Wz - BB REE 2RI
property, plant and equipment e (3,200,335) (4,873,037)
Unallocated head office and RABBRHER R AR
corporate expenses (34,868,797) (43,958,863)
Loss before income tax (expense)/ — FFEAEEE 2 BTG
credit from continuing operations (M%) HEEriEiE (127,399,498) (46,775,163)
—ZET-NFFR
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BY 15 ¥R AR M &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H
31 March 2014

6.

(b)

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. ZE®BE®)
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit (b) HWHREDEEFHBEGE - EERE
or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BEZYHER(E)
Assets BE
2014 2013
—E-NE —T—=fF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Reportable segment assets AmESEEE 815,283,246 1,051,960,891
Available-for-sale investments AHfHERE 101,333,932 75,318,757
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEMEIAR 27,494,061 44,474,997
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB REE 9,362,065 12,329,623
Loan receivables FEWE R 11,300,000 22,500,000
Unallocated head office and corporate AN EEMNHFRE N AR EE
assets 20,822,794 16,037,768
Total assets BEBE 985,596,098 1,222,622,036
Liabilities BE
2014 2013
—E-mFE —T—=%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Reportable segment liabilities AIsRE S EaE 283,475,937 447,169,619
Other borrowings HmEE 13,000,000 —
Unallocated head office AoBMRERERAGAE
and corporate liabilities 6,519,339 3,051,556
Total liabilities BfEsE 302,995,276 450,221,175

XA R A B R QA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s D LR — Bi=¢ - — H

31 March 2014

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEHmEH)
(c) Geographical information (c) HEER
The Group's operations are mainly located in REBZEBFEURES - P H
Hong Kong, PRC and Korea. NEEHE -
An analysis of the Group's geographical AEBME Bz oTHINOT ¢

segments is set out as follows:

2014
“2-m%
Hong Kong PRC Korea Total
B4 HE &6 ag
Continuing Discontinued  Continuing Discontinued  Continuing Discontinued ~ Continuing Discontinued
operations  operation  operations  operation  operations  operation  operations  operation
RESERXY  BRIRE BAGERR CALEE SEEERE  CRLRE RESERR  SRLRR
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
Ar A A B A A B A

Tumover (note (i)} EEBH ) 6,639,426 - 217,607,615 12,489,056 - — 224,247,041 12,489,056
Non-current assets ERBEE(SBIAR

other than financial ~ ERERELERS)

instruments and

deferred tax assets 117,969,283 - 239,189,513 - 619921 - 363,358,067 -
2013
—3-cF
Hong Kong PRC Korea Total
i nE &f &%

Continuing  Discontinued ~ Continuing  Discontinued ~ Continuing  Discontinued ~ Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation  operations operation  operations operation  operations operation
REMEEE  BRIEER RBEEEER  DRLER RESEEE  BRUER RBEERR  BRLER

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
AT AT AT BT AT BT AT AT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E50) (E51)
(note 1) fnote 1)
(1) (1)
Tumnover (note (i) EERI) 14,628,202 — 215,650,161 58,416,246 - — 230,278,363 58,416,246
Non-current assets ERHAE(SBIAR
other than financial ~ ETHEZERI)
instruments and
deferred tax assets 131,288,559 — 346,608,113 177,397,520 — —  477896,672 177,397,520
Note: Wizt -
(i) Turnover is attributed to countries on the basis (i) BEEEZARTPEME S Z
of the customers’ location. B o
—E - FFR
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BY 15 ¥R AR M &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H
31 March 2014

T

TURNOVER 7. EHEE
Analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as REBZARFEWZHRSMTAT ¢
follows:
2014 2013
—B-mE —T-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(E3))
(note 1)
(Kia 1)
Continuing operations: FEREET
Revenue from licence fee collection FFET B AW T2 e
business 87,012,992 56,850,436
Revenue from exhibition-related services R ERIRTES 2 K 66,243,406 78,237,303
Gross rental income from property sub-  #WEDHEEBHAEHES WA
leasing business BEE 64,895,784 75,486,604
Revenue from artist and talent YN S PN LY LE
management and entertainment Epdl g
business 3,152,388 11,762,140
Gross rental income from investment WEMEFRSHESWABRE
properties - 4,277,318
Sale of food and beverages BEIHE 2,942,471 3,664,562
224,247,041 230,278,363
Discontinued operation: BRIEER
Revenue from hotel operation B JE T 2 Was
— Room rental —F# 3,353,183 14,104,682
— Food and beverages — ZR 6,495,623 31,744,785
— Rental income from shops — [EH WA 2,640,250 12,566,779
12,489,056 58,416,246
236,736,097 288,694,609

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZF-mF=A=1"H

31 March 2014

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8. HfhARWKz=
2014 2013
—E2-mFE —_T—=fF
HK$ HKS
Er T
(Restated)
(E51)
(note 1)
(Bist1)
Continuing operations: BEREEK .
Bank interest income RITHLE A 1,445,002 340,111
Loan interest income R S WA 806,423 2,658,487
Gain on a bargain purchase on WEEHI B A A 2 R EE B e (4
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43) i743) — 36,077,025
Gain on step acquisition of FEHWES E N2 W
joint ventures (note 43) (H17743) - 5,015,611
Gain on disposal of property, plant and ﬁ’%#%% [ 55 R 5% M 2 Wi
equipment 157,207 —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries RENB ARz W
(note 44(a), (d), (e), (1)) (Wt 44(a) ~ (d) ~ (e) > (1) 9,200,697 13,897,939
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held ﬁ’i%f’ﬁtﬂ%Z?FuwﬁJﬁﬁzqﬁ
for sale - 5,770,688
Government grants BUT@E)J
— relating to unconditional subsidies — BBEEKY 1,810,030 1,235,941
— for leasehold improvements (note (i) — &Y %%%fz(/zﬁuf(/)) 416,927 —
Waiver of amount due to a related party P ENBEEA T FIBWE (1)
(note (ii)) 2,836,401 —
Waiver of interest expense payables R R S F S (M (i)
(note (iii)) 3,623,596 —
Realised gain on disposal of HEAMHRBERE 2B ER KR
available-for-sale investments 2,378,140 —
Facility sharing income from an REHEE R R R WA
associate (note 46(a)) it 46(a)) 4,440,206 2,960,318
Others Hith 3,285,388 2,583,651

30,400,017 70,539,771

Discontinued operation: ORIEER .
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 44(c)) HEMB AR W= (it 44(c)) 79,446,079 —
Others Hf - 42,546

79,446,079 42,546

109,846,096 70,582,317

Notes: Hiat -

() The amount represents government subsidy (i) DRIBERER—EYESTHEE ZHEE
received in advance in relation to leasehold MERIEEW ZBRFEE - ZRIEH
improvement on a property sub-leasing project. The REEEYSE 7 HERIBZEP R -

amount will be recognised in profit or loss over the
lease term of the property being leased.

(i) The amount represents rental expenses paid on (i) %3 Aiﬁyamﬁag/\iﬁﬁﬁz%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
behalf by a related party. During the year, the %o FR E«E;@}\iaﬁmﬁ?ﬁﬂ}'
related party was deregistered and the Group no ﬁﬁ$;€T BESEZFEBCET -
longer has obligation to settle the amount.

(i)  The amount represents interest expenses payable (i) ZEBEpAEEMEMESTAER
to Yang Lei’s spouse in relation to a loan granted to HM EvREERF-RHWNBARZE
a subsidiary before the Group's acquisition of the ﬁﬁj&’ﬁZﬂE BT - BEAETY
property sub-leasing business. Yang Lei is a director % SHEBHB AT ZES  MiBE
of certain subsidiaries of the property sub-leasing ZHREEERAEFIIHEaBEEEE
business and Yang Lei's spouse confirmed that the B 350E
Group no longer has obligation to settle the amount.

—ZET-NFFR
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BY 15 ¥R AR M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. KERKEXEB RSN (M
(EXPENSE)/CREDIT FROM X))/ BRABER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Loss before income tax (expense)/credit from SRR TSR (), R
continuing operations is arrived at after charging: BIERE R IATSIE :

2014 2013
—E-0NOFE —=T—=fF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(&)
(note 1)
(Kia 1)
Amortisation on: BrgH
— intangible assets — mEE 15,664,496 15,076,271
— deferred expenditure — RERX 12,930,831 11,306,375

28,495,327 26,382,646

Direct operating expenses from EEHESWACKEME

investment properties that generated BEEEERY
_rental income — 1,585,370
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZERE

(note 44(b)) (K17F44(b)) 12,048,296 —

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEREEZE
equipment i - 36,386

Loss on early redemption of convertible  1ZRTEE AI &% 7 B8

_bonds fnote37) (es7) — 1,742,037
Impairment losses on: IERAE -
— property, plant and equipment — W - WERERE 8,840,980 —
— available-for-sale investments — A HERE 449,120 10,571,573
— trade and other receivables — BB R HEAFIE 6,831,200 5,037,349

16,121,300 15,608,922

Auditor’'s remuneration % SR B & 2,415,000 2,603,000

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZF-mF=A=1"H

31 March 2014

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The turnover and results of the hotel operation

10. BERILEK

BEXERA-_T—=FENA—HE_Z
—=F+A-+ZB(LEBHHER
HE_T-—="F=-fA=+—HItFEZ
BEENEENT

business for the period from 1 April 2013 to 22 July
2013 (date of disposal) and for the year ended 31
March 2013 are as follows:

Period from

1 April 2013
to 22 July
2013
(date of
disposal) 2013
H-ZE—=f
mMA—BZ
—E—=
tAZ=+=H
(BEBH)
HE @ —=—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Turnover ERE 12,489,056 58,416,246
Other income and gains E b ug A M Uz — 42,546
Costs of inventories FERA (3,890,305) (19,675,610)
Depreciation on property, plant and WE  BERRBZINE
equipment (139,124) (15,749,123)
Amortisation of payments for leasehold — RIFZEROFE 2z EHA
land held for own use under operating B+ 7
leases (1,205,395) (4,044,898)
Impairment loss of property, plant and Y - BEREEZRES
equipment B - (915,584)
Impairment loss on payments for RIBGERNBBEcERA
leasehold land held for own use under B ARz REEE
operating leases —  (11,794,347)
Staff costs BT (8,332,135) (32,401,408)
Other operating expenses Hith &g M= (9,977,538) (22,910,829)
Loss before income tax credit BRETIS T R BT ES 18 (11,055,441) (49,033,007)
Income tax credit FrigHiEe — 2,948,587
Loss for the year from discontinued BRIEEB 2 AFEEHE
operation (11,055,441) (46,084,420)
—ZET-NFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

11. STAFF COSTS

11. BIRA

Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
REREXE BRLEEK Bt
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E2-mFE —T-=F ZB-Mf _—T-=-F ZB-NF _—T-=F
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT B BT
(Restated)
(E5)
(note 1)
(M)
Staff costs (including & THRA(BE
Directors) comprise:  £% )84 :
Salaries ok 59,140,490 457341,430 6,572,515 25,803,285 65,713,005 71,144,715
Contribution to defined &Rz 2
contribution pension  Z
plans 7,328,074 6,251,688 1,301,843 4,749,865 8,629,917 11,001,553
Other short-term HioB e sfa
monetary benefits 2,322,444 723,857 457,777 1,848,258 2,780,221 2,572,115
Equity-settled share-  FRELZE R
based payment [opdiib3
expense (note 42) (Hizt42) 9,376,692 244,722 - — 9,376,692 244,722
78,167,700 52,561,697 8,332,135 32,401,408 86,499,835 84,963,105

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZF-mF=A=1"H

31 March 2014

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 12. EEREREEEMNS
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments EEME
The aggregate amounts of the Directors’ EEMSRBHT -

emoluments are as follows:

Salaries Share-based  Retirement

and other payment scheme  Benefits in
Fees benefits expense contributions kind Total
FER gl B
ik Eth3E R ARAX HE L ENHE BE
2014 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
—B-mEF V-3 B B B A A
Executive directors ~ H{TES
Cheng Yang 15 - 3,720,600 1,736,424 15,000 - 5,472,024
Lei Lei FE - 1,950,000 1,562,782 10,000 180,000 3,702,782
Li Weipeng THE 1,440,000 - 868,212 - - 2308212
Zheng Yuchun (i) 9530 - 471,000 - 3,750 - 480,750
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
directors
Tong Jingguo KRE 120,000 - 86,821 - - 206,821
Yang Rusheng BmE 120,000 - 86,821 - - 206,821
So Tat Keung Bz 120,000 - 86,821 - - 206,821
1,800,000 6,147,600 4,427,881 28,750 180,000 12,584,231
—ZET-NFFR
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BY 15 ¥R AR M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 12. EEREGREEEME )
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) BEEMe(E)
Salaries  Share-based  Retirement
and other payment scheme
Fees benefits expense contributions Total
FHek &) BIR
e HEF A ET B PR
2013 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
—E—= BT BT BT BT T
Executive directors H1TESE
Cheng Yang 215 — 3,720,600 — 14,500 3,735,100
Zheng Yuchun (i) BEZ() — 2,067,000 244,722 14,500 2,326,222
Lei Lei (i) BE ) 200,000 1,089,001 — — 1,289,001
Liu Yu Mo (iii) B R (i) — 1,642,700 — 7,000 1,649,700
Li Weipeng TEE 1,440,000 — — — 1,440,000
Independent BYEHITES
non-executive
directors
Tong Jingguo KEH 120,000 — — — 120,000
Yang Rusheng iy lea 120,000 — — — 120,000
So Tat Keung BRIE R 120,000 — — — 120,000
2,000,000 8,519,301 244,722 36,000 10,800,023
No Directors waived their emoluments in respect of MEEEREHEE - - NFE=A
the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil). ST —HALFEZME(ZE—=%F:
) o
Discretionary bonuses were granted based on BIE IR 2 SEALTORIBE R EE 2 RIR
the performance of individual Directors and MixH r WEEARB ZHMEE it
were approved by the Company's remuneration A o
committee.
Notes: Wi
(i) The Director was resigned with effect from 1 July (i) HEERA-_ZE—=-F+H—BEET-
2013.
(i) The Director was appointed on 3 September 2012. (il ZEBEEN_Z——FAA=AEZ(E-
(i) The Director resigned with effect from 3 September (i) ZESEH-_ZT——FNA=HIEBHT-
2012.

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, three (2013: three) were Directors of
the Company whose emoluments are included in
the above.

The emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two)
highest paid individual in 2014 are as follows:

12.

—ZT-—MNFE=A=1+—H
31 March 2014

EELEHREEEME 2

TERSHMAL
AEBRAARRFMALF  =R(=
T—=ZF: ZRI)REARAESE - HM
EEHEREX -

—E-OFHEBMB(ZE—=F: W
B)mEFMATZMEeOT ¢

2014 2013
= F-nmFE —F=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other EZ&R#H4 - EERAL - i
allowances and benefits in kind AR EYF = 4,077,000 3,220,000
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET SR 30,000 72,000
4,107,000 3,292,000
The emoluments are within the following band: EEL TEEZA -
2014 2013
—E-UF —_F—=
Number of Number of
Employees  Employees
ESZH ESEH
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000, 7C 2 1,500,000
BT — 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T = 2,000,000
BT 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 8702 2,500,000
BT 1 _
—ZT-NEEFER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

12. EEREREEEME &)

MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

Remuneration of senior management SREEE &M

Remuneration of senior management of the AREBSREEEHFMN( S EXATE
Group, including amounts paid to the highest paid BENTEFUINZERTFMEE 22
employees other that Directors as disclosed above, BEUTEHEZA -

are within the following bands:

2014 2013
—E-mOFE —T—=fF
Number of  Number of
Employees  Employees

ESEH ES 2

HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

1,000,000 % 7% 1,500,000

BIT — 3
1,500,001 77L& 2,000,000

BT 3 1
2,000,001 #7T% 2,500,000

BT 1 —

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s D LR — Bi=¢ - — H

31 March 2014

13. FINANCE COSTS 13. BERA
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
FEQEEB BRIER @st
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZB-mE —T-=F ZE-NF —FT-=F ZB-0F —T=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT

Interest on bank BITERZFE

loans 8,501,052 9,932,046 - — 8,501,062 9,932,046
Effective interest AR EHZ ER
expenses on FERX
convertible bonds — 3,656,882 - — — 3,656,882
Effective interest #4212 B A
expenses on BHX
promissory notes 3,065,402 615,098 - — 3,065,402 615,098
Interest on bank RITEZ 2 HE
overdrafts - 181,596 - — - 181,596
Interest on other ~ H{EEZFI 8
borrowings 931,137 1,368,258 - — 931,137 1,368,258
Interest on amounts & JEIE AR AR B 5K
due to non- B2 S
controlling
shareholders 778,171 805,346 - — 778,171 805,346
13,275,762 16,559,226 - — 13,275,762 16,559,226
—ZET-NFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 14. FRIBHIEX (ER)
The amount of income tax expense/(credit) in the EEArEREIRANZHAEHRBAS
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (e )e5iE
represents:
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
RFELEEYR BRILER @5t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mF _—T-=-F ZB-M§ _—T-=-Ff ZB-NF _—T-=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT B BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (&31)
(note 1) (note 1)
(Hiz1) (hi1)

Current tax — Hong  RfTHE — A

Kong profits tax FEH
— tax for the year ~ — KEFEFIE 229,259 667,195 - — 229,259 667,195
— over-provision — BAFEZ
in respect of HRERE
prior years (115,931) — - — (115,931) —
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 113,328 667195 o ... ... 13328 667195
Current tax — PRC ~ B{THE— HE
Enterprise Income  {MEFEH
Tax
— tax for the year ~ — KEEFIE 3,045,966 892,181 - — 3,045,966 892,181
— over-provision in - — BEFEZ
respect of prior HRERH
years —  (6,711,844) - - - (6,711,844)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 3045966 (5819663) - — 3045966 (5819,663)
Deferred tax (note 39) EEMIE(HE39)  (1,632,765) (4,212,551) - (2,948587) (1,632,765) (7,161,138)
1,526,529 (9,365,019 — (2,948,587) 1,526,529 (12,313,606)

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED




B 15 8 & MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZF-mF=A=1"H

31 March 2014

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 14. FRE%iBEX (&) 2)

(Continued)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for certain BEANEGHEIIBREBEASEETSE TH S
subsidiaries within the Group and is calculated at RNAlARFE 2 Mt ERBR FIR T X
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable 16.5% (ZF — =% : 16.5%) 7t & #&
profits for the year. No provision for Hong Kong - AR AEBETEMMNBARSE
profits tax has been made for other subsidiaries ZARIRAEE R A AFEE 2 HEt
within the Group as those subsidiaries have i M SN F A AL ET ERBOEF - W
sufficient tax losses brought forward to offset WERZEWNBARERNFHREENE
against the estimated profits for the year or have T o

no estimated assessable profits for the year on an
individual basis.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise FREMEB AR BEZR25% (ZE—=4F:
Income Tax at 25% (2013: 24% to 25%). 24% ZE 25% ) 2 BRGNP B EFTE
—E - FFR
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Bt 7% R M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

(Continued)

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can
be reconciled to the loss per the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

14. FRIBHiEX (E&R)#)

AEERBHRAX(BEe) G52
e R EIRZHRIAT ¢

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$ HK$
B BT
(Restated)
(&#751)
(note 1)
(K1)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRATERIRE (%) A1 (&)
expense/(credit) Vet
Continuing operations FECEER (127,399,498)  (46,775,163)
Discontinued operation AR EER 68,390,638  (49,033,007)
(59,008,860)  (95,808,170)
Tax credit calculated at Hong Kong profits tax 12 & /& F1SHi 5% 16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) (ZF—=%:165%)7HZ
MIRE R (9,736,462)  (15,808,348)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMAEEERLE CHEA
operating in other jurisdictions ABENR 22 (4,800,987) (1,091,416)
Tax effect of share of losses of associates DR EAREE  RETE 1,073,933 701,541
Tax effect of share of losses of joint ventures H1EALARIEBZ HBFE — 581,875
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAMBHZ R 2 689,825 22,115,283
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BRERIW G 2 ST E (15,284,792)  (31,259,754)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences REER R HT G Z5 2 B 15
not recognised % 1,616,846 —
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FAERABEEB2HETE 28,084,097 19,223,669
Utilisation of tax losses previously not HABTRERLHIBEBR
recognised - (64,612)
Over-provision in respect of prior years BAFERERE (115,931) (6,711,844)
Income tax expense/(credit) FriERiEY/(He) 1,526,529  (12,313,606)

XA R A B R QA
| CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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16.

Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

Loss attributable to shareholders includes an
amount of HK$94,927,897 (2013: HK$21,405,326)
which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2014, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of reporting period
(2013: Nil).

o]t

16.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

BREREML R

BRREELMEERBEEEAR R TB
WMREIE L £%94,927,897 BT (=F
— =4 : 21,405,326 7T) ©

RE

BE_F-ME=A=F-ALFEY
SR SR8 B R
IR R IR B (—F— =
m) -

—ZET-NFFR
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BY 15 ¥R AR M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

17. LOSS PER SHARE 17. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per ARAREBREZBEABGEZSRE
share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of RAEEEERIIBENTE8EE -

the Company is based on the following data:

2014 2013
—EB-mFE _—_ZT—=
HK$ HK$
ET BT
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of basic and A EERELAREE
diluted (loss)/earnings per share (BR) BNz (EER)
ol
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to RABVEBAELAFEZ
owners of the Company (B8, &
— from continuing operations — BEREE (121,345,266)  (32,304,250)
— from discontinued operation — BERIEE 69,053,964  (46,091,027)
— from continuing and discontinued — BEEERDEIEER
operations (52,291,302)  (78,395,277)
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FR{EsTEGRER(ERE),/
for the purpose of basic (loss)/earnings BF| 2 AR nAE T 5 8
per share 598,767,047 598,767,047
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: HEETEBER o TE
— Share options — R - —
— Convertible bonds — AIMRES - —

Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FA{Ezt EFMEE (F518),/

for the purpose of diluted (loss)/earnings BF| 2 L mARnAE 8

per share 598,767,047 598,767,047
There are no dilutive effects on the share options ARERH ZARERBEES AR
granted, and convertible bonds as they are anti- S I EEE R E .
dilutive.

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. ¥1% ~ MEK&RE

B %% ¥ 3Rk MY &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—mE=RA=+—H
31 March 2014

Group REE
Hotel Leasehold Furniture,
buildings land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
in PRC buildings  improvements Wardrobe equipment vehicles Yacht Total
ReERZ RELH b
bl &2 ke BENEEE EYER ZERRE AE i ag
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
AT AT BT AT BT AT V-7 AT
Cost or valuation (Restated) HASHE (5] 1)

(note 1)

At 1 April 2012 W-E-—4mA-A 25,347,199 5,700,000 181,350,273 1,137,797 63,462,140 10,123 461 6,800,000 293921470
Surplus on revaluation EfEEH - 2,000,000 - - - - - 2,000,000
Additions 0 - - 37,410,045 - 2,453 567 4,864,491 — 44,728,103
Acquired through business ERERANNEMH)

combination (note 43) - - 56,401 - 1,448,616 1,583,855 - 3,088,872
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRR Wit d4re) - 1)

(note 44(e), (fl) - - (2,425,491) - (311,056) (20,49) - (2,757,043)
Disposals HE - - - - (1,195,122) (413,015) - 1,608,137)
Written off ikt - - — (1,137,797) - - — (1,137,797)
Exchange differences EXES 96,575 - 806,271 - 764,470 104,400 - 1,771,716
At 31 March 2013 and RZF-Z5=A=1+-AR

1 April 2013 “E-ZERA-A 25,444 374 7,700,000 217,197,499 - 06,622,615 16,242,696 6,800,000 340,007,184
Surplus on revaluation EfRE - 500,000 - - - - - 500,000
Additions #h - - 22,571,261 - 3,213,640 3,250,990 - 29,035,891
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR

(note 44(a), (b), (c)) (/’W}M/ﬁ/ //7/ () (25,824,387) —  (145159,271) - (58,356,950) (2,154,553 —  (231,495,161)
Disposals - - (3,398,341) - (1,443.801) - - 4,842,142)
Exchange differences ER%%E 380,013 - 842,354 - 790,150 51,041 - 2,063,558
At 31 March 2014 REZE-ME=A=1-H - 8,200,000 92,053,502 - 10,825,654 17,390,174 6,800,000 135,269,330
Accumulated depreciation and ZRAERAE

impairment (Restated) (B3 1)

(note 1)

At 1 April 2012 W-E-_%mA-AH 22,569,168 - 56,233,398 1,137,797 48,424,682 3,895,386 1,813,333 134,073,764
Charge for the year REETH 2,782,106 212,273 21,586,297 — 9,910,323 3,307,593 680,000 38,478,592
Eliminated on revaluation EfERYS - (212,273) - - - - - (212,273)
Impairment loss HEEE - - - - 915,584 - - 915,584
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - - - (1,113913) (392,570) - 1,506,483
Eliminated on written off iR - - - (1,137,797) - - - (1,137,797)
Disposal of subsidiaries LENEAR

(note 44fe), (f) (Bt 44te) - (1) - - (85,005) - 105,081) 3,236) - (193,322)
Exchange differences EiER 93,100 - 383,004 - 243,602 77,027 - 796,823
At 31 March 2013 and RZE-ZEZAZ+-AR

1 April 2013 “%-=%mA-A 25,444,374 - 78,117,784 - 58,275,197 6,884,200 2,493,333 171,214,888
Charge for the year KEERY — G459 8194945 — BmMm0 31542 680,000 19210566
Eliminated on revaluation EfERYH - (246,459) - - - - - (246,459)
Impairment loss REEE - - 8,012,747 - 828,233 - - 8,840,980
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAE

[note 44(a), (b), (cl) (Wistaafa) - tt) - (c) (25,824,387) - (51,497,654) - (55,198,189) 1,980,361) —  (134,500,591)
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - - (3398341 - (1437319 - — 4,835,656
Exchange differences EXER 380,013 - 145,675 - 163,017 46,975 - 725,680
AL 31 Merh 2014 HoE-mEZAZt-B - — 5716 — GEBEB 815N 3136 60498
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 /JA_ -mEZA=1-A - 8,200,000 52,478,346 — 1,269,781 9,285,128 3,626,667 74,859,922
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=F=f=1-R - 7,700,000 139,079,715 - 8,347,418 9,358,496 4,306,667 168,792,296

—E - FFR
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B %% 3R M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% - BERRE#)

(Continued)
The analysis of the net book value or valuation of NWEEBER-_ZT—WNF=A=+—AH2
the above assets at 31 March 2014 is as follows: REFEIHEITOT -
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Yacht Total
HELH HE E4N
kEF nEEE RERZE RE i fag
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
¥-53 V-73 AT AT V73 AT
At cost G - 52,478,346 1,269,781 9,285,128 3,626,667 66,659,922
At 2014 professional B-E-MErE
valuation £itE 8,200,000 - - - - 8,200,000
8,200,000 52,478,346 1,269,781 9,285,128 3,626,667 74,859,922
The analysis of the net book value or valuation of NEFEER-_E—=F=A=+—H2Z
the above assets at 31 March 2013 is as follows: BEEFENHEI T -
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor
buildings ~ improvements equipment vehicles Yacht Total
HELH HE 78
REF HEEL RERGE a2 i g
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS
AT V-7 AT AT A1 AT
At cost AR - 139,079,715 8,347,418 9,358,496 4,306,667 161,092,296
At 2013 professional B-E-Z%¢
valuation X0 7,700,000 - - - - 7,700,000
7,700,000 139,079,715 8,347,418 9,358,496 4,306,667 168,792,296

:

XA R A B R QA
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The Group's leasehold land and building is located
in Hong Kong and the carrying value is as follows:

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

18. ¥ - MEKRXE#)

REBZHE LW REFUREBLE
mEHNT :

2014 2013
—E-NE —FT—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Properties located in Hong Kong NRBEBZWE
Lease between 10 to 50 years N TF10ES0FELY 8,200,000 7,700,000

An impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment used in the property sub-leasing
business of HK$6,263,276 was made during the
year ended 31 March 2014 because the Group
ceased one of its property sub-leasing project
due to urban redevelopment proposed by the
local government in PRC. The recoverable amount
to which the property, plant and equipment are
allocated has been determined by the value-in-use
calculation.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, an impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment used in the
food and beverages business of HK$2,430,288 was
made because the Group experienced loss in the
past 2 years and the management considered this
business would continue to loss in the future due to
keen competition. The recoverable amount to which
the property, plant and equipment are allocated has
been determined by the value-in-use calculation.

An impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment used in the hotel operation of
HK$915,684 was made during the year ended
31 March 2013 due to keen competition in hotel
business which resulted in weak performance for
that year and uncertainty arose for subsequent
years. During the year ended 31 March 2013, the
recoverable amount of the hotel operation to which
property, plant and equipment and the payments
for leasehold land held for own use under operating
leases are allocated has been determined by the fair
value less costs to sell. The fair value was based
on the consideration in relation to disposal of hotel
operation immediate after 31 March 2013 (see note
44(c)) and the cost of disposal was not material.

AEBEREBEE-ZE—NF=A=1+—
AIEFERMESAEBRB 2 ME -

8= ik AT TR R (B 5 18 6,263,276 78
JC v UE TR A AN A B A AR B b 5 BT
EOWMTMER  MKIEER—IBYMES
THIEB M - O - BE L& E
ZA B e EIEFEREEFEAE

Eo

AEBEREBZEZE_ZE—NF=A=1—
RIEFEREREBMAZYE BE
MR (B &5 18 2,430,288 5 7T -
&tﬂmﬂﬁglﬁAﬂimiﬁ%féﬂ% '
‘S 12 B 3R 4 L 3 75 15 R R R 5 55 T 42
%Eﬁéﬂixﬂjiﬁfﬂaﬁﬁﬁ ELRE -
BEREE TR E &R IRFERER

SRR -

AEBEREEZTE—=F=A=1+—
AIEFERBIEXBRACYE - BE
R E R TE 915,684 T ¢ It
THHEREEESHRERZ - BHZFE
ZRIREIB REEFEEETHAMRESE
Frig- BE_FT—=F=A=+—8H1
FE - EHREDE - BEREHENALR
BREMNTBECEREELMNRZ
BRI 2 A El S B IE A FEER
HERAET - A EENIZEBERE
TE-=F=-A=t+—HHBEONEBEEE
BRI 44(c) 2REFL - MEEX
R EKX o

—ZET-NFFR
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Bt 7% R M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

18.

19.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - MEKXE#)
(Continued)
Leasehold land and buildings were revalued at HETHEEBFESHOIAEET HLE
31 March 2014 on the open market value basis MERAR(SANZE—=F: 5
by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited —ARFRBHAEEREXBERBR AR
(“APAC") (2013: Savills Valuation and Professional (B —KESER D) EZAFAMEREE
Services Limited (“Savills”)). The valuation was R-TE—NME=ZA=+—HEMRF - HE
mainly arrived at by reference to comparable FEZZRNELBRMBRHEE - BfE
market transactions. A net revaluation surplus of EERFEI623,293B L (ZF — =4 :
HK$623,293 (2013: HK$1,847,248) was credited to 1,847,248 B L) EFt AR EE
other properties revaluation reserve, after netting i YEHKhERZEERERX
off applicable deferred tax expense of HK$123,166 123,166 B 7L(Z=F — =4 : 365,025%
(2013: HK$365,025). JT) e
The fair value of the leasehold land and buildings in R-ZE—WE=ZA=+—H REEZ
Hong Kong of HK$8,200,000 as at 31 March 2014 is MELREF A FEES,200,000
a Level 2 recurring fair value measurement. BITRER2EENL N TEEFE -
The carrying amount of leasehold land and building WAL E 2 HE+ 1 &8 TR AR
of the Group would have been HK$712,569 ZEETENRZBREEBEEER  HEE
(2013: HK$736,840) had they been stated at cost F{EMER7125698 T (ZE—=5:
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 736,840 7T) ©
impairment losses.
At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group did not R-ZE—NMEF-_ZT—=F=A=+—
pledge any property, plant and equipment. B AEBEWEEREADE - BER
& e
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWE
Group AEE
2014 2013
—EB-mE —T—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April RIA—H — 82,873,000
Addition during the year F I N 6,199,271 —
Disposal of subsidiary (note 44(d)) & B A R (B 7 44(d)) — (82,873,000)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 6,199,271 —

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED



Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

19. REWHX(#)

Investment properties were revalued at 31 (a) TEMER-_T—NE=A=+—
March 2014 on the open market value basis H %8 (H1EET Mirae & Saehan
by an independent valuer, Mirae & Saehan Appraisal Co., LtdiZ AR MHE
Appraisal Co., Ltd. The valuation was mainly BEESHE - HETELENEL
arrived at by reference to comparable market RS RSEN -
transactions.
At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group did not b) RZE—MOEFR_ZT—=F=H
pledge any investment property. =+—0B  AEETEERERER
B -
Gross rental income from investment (c) HEMEZHSWALTAZT(Z
properties was nil (2013: HK$4,277,318). L —=4 :4,277,31887T) °
The fair value of the investment properties in (d RZZE—MWE=/=+—H8 R
Korea of approximately HK$6,200,000 as at BRI WEMWEZAFEED
31 March 2014 is a level 2 recurring fair value 6,200,000 B T AEH2E&EHE R
measurement. FEEE -
The Group's investment properties are (e) AEEZEREMEZHEMEDN
analysed at their carrying values as follows: wmR
2014 2013
—EB-mE —T-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Investment properties located NRBEEZREWE
in Korea
Freehold KA 6,199,271 —
—ZET-NFFR
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BY 15 ¥R AR M &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

20. PAYMENTS FOR LEASEHOLD 20. REKEENRE2AAEE
LAND HELD FOR OWN USE UNDER T iR
OPERATING LEASES
Group KEH
HK$
BT
At 1 April 2012 N-ZE——FWA—H 200,840,319
Charge for the year AFEEZH (4,044,898)
Impairment loss BIEEE (11,794,347)
Exchange differences b N =R 741,338
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R-E—=F=A=+—BEk_-_ZT—=%F
mA—H 185,742,412
Charge for the year REFEZH (1,205,395)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44(c)) LEMB AR (Mt 44(c)) (184,694,557)
Exchange differences bE 3 =5 157,540
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—mMF=A=+—H —
The above land was held under long-term and was Lt REFHHEBURHE -

located in PRC.

The impairment of HK$11,794,347 recognised AEBRZZE—=—FBRAZBE
in 2013 was related to a parcel of land used for 11,794,347 & T )5 B — 18 REEE %75
hotel operation. In assessing the impairment, the 2T EHE - T ERER  BHEZT
recoverable amount of payments for leasehold land —=F=ZA=T-HLEFERELEH
held for own use under operating leases for the MEFEZARMAED AR ZAIKE S
years ended 31 March 2013 was determined using BB 18 MMBAREE RS
the same basis as explained in note 18 on the hotel MHERELEETE

operation.

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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B %% ¥ 3Rk MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WFE=A=+—H

31 March 2014

21. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT 21. BERRE
Group TEH

Provision of

copyright ~ Provision of

licence fees  intellectual

settlement property  Exhibition- Property

and collection  enforcement relation  sub-leasing  Food and Entertainment Wedding

services services business business  beverages business services Others Total
RUGE Rt

RHEEER  HREE  REME  NR0R

WERE  EERE 3 S M m#sr EERR 4 g

[note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(W&n) (W) Wit)
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS

#r A AT A i Ar & Ar ET

Cost A
At 1 April 2012 RZE-ZEMA-H 1196604441 79427363 113345367 18,311,567 220049 99366179 18,988,140 15,000 1,488,308 541
Disposal of subsidiaries i EHEAT

Inote 44(e) (W) - - - - — (8407889 - — (84078892
Written off i (1,156,054 441) — {113 .345,357) — (2200494  (15,287,287)  (18,988,140) (15,000) (1,306,490,719)
At 31 March 2013and 1Z%

1 April 2013

— 79427363 — 18311567 - - - - 97738930
Disposal of subsidiaries EFEA

Inote 44(b) (W) - - - (119839 - - - — (1719839

A3 March 2014 R-F-MEZA

=t-H — 79427363 — 16,591,728 - - - — 96,019,091
Impairment e
At 1 April 2012 RZE-ZFMA-H 1156,854,441 — 113345357 - 2200494 40274174 18,988,140 15,000 1.331477,606
Disposel of subsidiaries HEHBA

Inote 44(e) (Wiue) - - - - —[24,986,887) - — (24.986,88)
Eliminated on ket
written off (1,156,604,441) - (113,345,357) — (2200494 (15,287.287) (18,988,140 (15,000) (1,306,490,719)
M3 Mach 2013, HZE-ZEZR

Thpil2013and  =F-8 2%

31 March 2014 -ZF#@A-ARk

5-[E=R

=t+-H - - - - - - - - -
Carrying value R
A3 Mach 2014 R-E-ME

ZA=t-f — 79427363 — 16591728 - - - — 96,019,091
A3 March 2013 R-E-=£=4

=t-H — 79427363 — 18311567 - - - - 97738930

—E - FFR
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BY 5 8 R MY &E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

21. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT 21. BERREE)

(Continued)

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”, management of the Group performed
impairment test for goodwill allocated to the
Group’s various cash generating units (“CGUs")
by comparing their recoverable amounts to their
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculation.

(@) The recoverable amount of the CGU in
relation to provision of intellectual property
enforcement services has been determined
from value-in-use calculation based on cash
flow projections covering from 2014 to 2022,
which is the period whereby an exclusive right
has been granted to the Group by the China
Audio-Video Copyright Association to provide
intellectual property enforcement services. No
impairment was provided on goodwill from the
provision of intellectual property enforcement
services as the recoverable amount exceeded
the carrying amount of the CGU.

Management of the Group has adopted the
following key assumptions in preparation
of the cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill, the related
intangible asset (note 22(b)) and deferred
expenditure (note 27):

— The revenue growth rate and discount
rate used for cash flow projections for

BREEBGHERNEICRIEEZR
Bl AEEEEEKASEERTE
HEEBEM([CGUDRI|E MR Z AT Bl &
MEHEREELER  BOEEECGULZ
EEETRERNR - CGUZAIEE R
TREREBEEAEELETE -

(a) BHERHABERGEERS 2
CGUZRIK B¢ RBIHIERE T
—NEET-_FIHReNEE
BTREREBRFTEEETE - % B
MNP ESGEFESEBEERERS
[ 52 [ 45 HH W S A R DA BR A 4058
ERERERY 2 HM - AR CGU
ZalkEeEaRNREE  WIie
IR AR ER GRS 2 B
IRBERE -

AEBEREERNRER S RETEN
LUETTEE  BEEFREEME
22(b)) R EF 2 (M52 27) BB
RIS EAAT EEME

— B RATE N A R AR
ZHReRERB A2 K

the provision of intellectual property HREERMBENT :
enforcement services are as follows:
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-RF ZEBE-xF ZE—tf ZZ-N\§ ZZ-hEF
Revenue growth rate Wt & 42% 40% 40% 31% 36%
Discount rate i R 17% 17% 17% 17% 17%

—  Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated zero
revenue growth rate per annum.

XA WIRRE AR A A
| CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The Group performed sensitivity analysis
calculations on the future cash flows adopted
in the cash flow projections. Sensitivity
analysis is based on a 25% decline in revenue
growth rate because changes up to this
magnitude are reasonably possible. If the
revenue growth rate was 25% lower than the
anticipated revenue growth rate, the carrying
amount of goodwill would be subject to
impairment of approximately HK$35,071,434.

On 8 July 2011, the Group acquired the
entire issued share capital of BoRen Cultural
Development Limited (“BoRen”) which is
engaged in sub-leasing of properties and
facilities in Nanjing, PRC. The estimated
recoverable amount is determined based on
value-in-use calculation. These calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using
a 5% (2013: 5%) revenue growth rate per
annum. Discount rate of 11% (2013: 11%) per
annum was used in the calculation which was
provided by APAC with reference to similar
companies. The key assumptions have been
determined by the Group’'s management based
on past performance and its expectations for
the industry development. No impairment was
provided on goodwill from the property sub-
leasing business as the recoverable amount
exceeded the carrying amount of the CGU
during the years ended 31 March 2014 and
2013.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the
goodwill was derecognised as a result of the
disposal of China Media and Films Holdings
Limited ("CMF") and its subsidiaries (see note
44(e)).

All the discount rates used above are pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

21. MERRE )

(a)

A EHBZ

(&)
Z'SE . E\ééMTiﬁi/m%fi E'JFFFT?K)EH Z
ARREREETHBEE DI
“owmﬁ 3T YIRS & R,
L25% 1T RERNALEEAR
i@Z“@BAﬁmT EEEAE o i
I A8 R R TR AR A I R R >
25% @ A2 REESARE
#735,071,434 7T °

RZZE—FEANA x5E
WEECXEERBRAA(E
ChzaHe#aka BER
PEERREMERZBDME - (4
qu—MﬂZlEl%%EEﬁzﬁJﬂfﬁﬁquM*&

c REGERBRBEEENE
/@%ﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ SEH 2 80
BIIRERETER - AFHME 2R
%muiﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁiil’s%(:;_:
Foo%) 2R REMEH - 5t
ERATA2EMRERRERRERS
FNB(ZT—=F 1 11%) 28
WER - FERFIHAEREEE
*ETF%BTE?%EE&,H\Q?‘T%%EZ%
HmEE -BE_T—HFR_
—=F=ZA=+—HLHFE" EEE’\\
CGUz Bl & BEm RN REE -
MR E D M EB 2 BT R
B -

BE-_T—=F=-A=+—HItHF
£ BEREE China Media and
Films Holdings Limited f* Bl{&

EHRERBRAA(THHEES
TEJ)&EWE A MEUE R (R
izt 44(e)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22. BLEE
Group TEH
Provision of
copyright ~ Provision of
licence fees intellectual Customer
settlement property relationship
and collection  enforcement Golf club  and customer Films
services services  memberships contracts Film rights in progress Total
RitiE Rt BEAR
KHBLER HaER fay EFBAER
BERE L g EFEH BYiiE BemEY g
(note (a)) (ot (b)) note (c) (note (d] note (&) (note (f)
(Hn) (K (i) (Wit (i) ()
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT AT A1 A AT AT A
Cost [Restated) (note 1) RAE) )
At 1 April 2012 R-E-—EMmA-A - 116,405,993 1,494 552 38,410,000 1,188,218 413422 157,912,145
Additions ]l - - - - - 15,568,645 15,568,645
Acquired through business  FEEBARIEHE4)

combinations (note 43) 2,387,031 - 816,523 - - - 3,203,554
Disposal of subsidiares HERBLA i ae)

(note 44(e)) - - - - (1188218 [#13422) (1,601,640
Exchange differences EXZE (15,927) 442,558 - - - 29,604 456,325
At 31 March 2013 and RIE-ZEZf=1-0)

1 April 2013 “5-SELA-H 231,104 116,848,511 231,075 38,410,000 - 15,588,339 175,529,029
Additons bl - - - - - 10,370,981 10,370,981
Disposal ik - - - - - [3,873,499) 3,873,499)
Exchange differences ERzE 123,015 2137886 14,839 - - 344,669 2620409
At 31 March 2014 AF-EEZA=+-H 2494119 118,986,397 2305914 38.410,000 - 22430490 184,646,920
Accumulated amortisation ~ ZEBEREE(ET)

and impaiment [Restated) (37

note 1)

At 1 April 2012 R-E-“ENE-A - 14,550,743 121,175 9011275 - - 23,683,193
Amartisation for the year KEERH 118,555 11,662,593 116,883 3178240 - - 15,076,271
Exchange differences EiEE (16,926) 8171 5448 - - - 73,693
At 31 March 2013 and i =3 “#=f=1-BR

1 April 2013 £-ZEMA-R 102,629 26,297,507 243 506 12,189,515 - - 38,833,157
Amortisation for the year MF gy 478523 11,790,850 116,883 3178240 - - 15,564,496
Exchange differences EXZE 6,252 588,935 - - - - 595,187
At 31 March 2014 AF-EE=A=1-H 087,404 38,677,292 360,389 15,367,755 - - 54,992,840
Net book value FASE
At 31 March 2014 A F-REZA=1-H 1,906,715 80,309,105 1,965,525 23,042,245 - 22430490 129,604,080
At 31 March 2013 W-E-Z£=f=1-H 2,268,475 90,501,004 2,067,569 26,220,485 - 15,588,339 136,695,872

XA R A B R QA
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

Provision of copyright licence fees settlement
and collection services represents the
exclusive right in respect of the karaoke
copyright in PRC managed and administered
by the China Audio-Video Copyright
Association for a period of 10 years from 27
December 2007. The recoverable amount
of the CGU of provision of copyright licence
fees settlement and collection services to
which the licence fee collection right is
allocated has been determined by the value-
in-use calculation. During the year ended 31
March 2013, intangible asset in relation to
provision of copyright licence fees settlement
and collection services of HK$2,387,031
was acquired through step acquisition of
joint ventures (see note 43). As at 31 March
2014 and 2013, management of the Group
determined that there was no impairment as
the recoverable amount exceeded its carrying
amount.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of
provision of intellectual property enforcement
services to which the intellectual property
enforcement services right is allocated
has been determined by the value-in-use
calculation, the details of which are disclosed
in note 21(a). As at 31 March 2014 and 20183,
management of the Group determined that
there was no impairment as the recoverable
amount exceeded its carrying amount.

For the purpose of impairment testing on
the golf club memberships, the recoverable
amount has been determined based on fair
value less costs to sell. The fair value less
costs to sell is referenced to the second-hand
market price of the golf club memberships
less estimated costs of disposal. During
the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013,
no impairment loss was recognised since
the recoverable amount of the golf club
memberships exceeded its carrying amount.

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

. BR.EE®)

(a)

RERESTEEE RNERBE
FRTEHEREEEERERD
SEBERER HB KR OKhi#E
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EleEIREABENEEEE °
e Z—=%F=ZA=+—HIL*HF
E - BREARERESITEEE K
SR | & E 2,387,031 87T
FRFFWIES “”‘T%)\(Eﬁﬁ
FI43) c RZE—MFRZ
F=HA=+—H  *x&H Eﬁﬁ/u
RBERAIKE £ Ee RN EREE -
D SR E -

EOoRMBERGERGEZE
4 0 280 E M B RS CGU Z AT UK
Bl &R EREEREAEE

HFEBRWE21@QEE - R=F
—NERZE-—Z=ZF=A=+—
B AEEEEERSHNAKRE
ESPEREE WL EEE -

AEBARRELITSE 2 RENR
ms  AAkEeEERAFEE
MIHEKAREE - A FEERHEE
RATIZ2ESRRRBLELEFHEL
“FMERMAFTHERAMSE -
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=t—HIEFE  ARERRRE
LyeE oMo ESNERE
1B - S BRI EE A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(d)

Customer relationship and customer contracts
represent the long established relationship
China Resources Advertising & Exhibition
Company Limited, the Company’s subsidiary,
and its subsidiaries (the “"CRA Group”), which
acts as an organiser and contractor for all
kinds of exhibition events and meeting events
mainly in Hong Kong, with the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council ("HKTDC") and
various sub-councils of the China Council for
the Promotion of International Trade in PRC
for large-scale trade fairs, which are mostly
organised by HKTDC. The CRA Group has
been consistently appointed by HKTDC as the
sole agent of China Pavilion for the Hong Kong
Fashion Week. These customer relationship
and customer contracts have estimated useful
life of ten years. During the year ended 31
March 2014, no impairment loss (2013: nil)
was recognised in respect of the customer
relationship and customer contracts due to the
reason as described below.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the
estimated recoverable amounts of the above
CGU were determined based on the value-
in-use approach. These calculations use pre-
tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a
seven-year period with reference to the useful
life of customer relationship and customer
contracts. Discount rate of 16% (2013: 16%) is
used in the calculation. The key assumptions
have been determined by the Group's
management based on past performance and
its expectations for the industry development.
Management of the Group determined that
there was no impairment loss or reversal of
impairment loss on intangible assets as the
recoverable amount marginally exceeded the
carrying amount of the CGU and there was no
significant change in the Group’s management
expectations of exhibition-related business
during the years ended 31 March 2014 and
2013.

XA R EAR AR

| CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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(d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

The Group performed sensitivity analysis
calculations on the future cash flows adopted
in the cash flow projections. Sensitivity
analysis is based on a 50% decline in revenue
growth rate because changes up to this
magnitude are reasonably possible. If the
revenue growth rate was 50% lower than the
anticipated revenue growth rate, the carrying
amount of customer relationship and customer
contracts would be subject to impairment of
approximately HK$7,690,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the film
rights were disposed of through the disposal
of subsidiaries (see note 44(e)).

Films in progress of HK$15,558,645 were
acquired during the year ended 31 March
2013. Films in progress represented costs
for development and preparation of films
which are under production. In light of the
stage of film production, the Group regularly
reviews the progress of film production to
assess the cost of films in progress. The
estimated recoverable amount of the films in
progress has been determined by the value-
in-use calculation. These calculations use pre-
tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. Discount rate of 17% (2013:
13%) per annum is used in the calculation.
The key assumptions have been determined
by the Group’s management based on past
performance and its expectations for the
industry development. During the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, management
of the Group determined that there was
no impairment as the recoverable amount
exceeded its carrying amount.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, films
in progress of HK$413,422 were disposed
through the disposal of subsidiaries (see note
44(e)).

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-WNE=F=+—8H
31 March 2014

23. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

23. MBATZ2ER

Company
VNN
2014 2013
—E-lmF —E—=F
HK$ HK$
Er ETT

Unlisted shares, at cost
Less: Impairment loss

E )

C BB

B RE 1R

1,952,885,100 2,039,794,523
(1,479,471,922) (1,571,566,926)

473,413,178 468,227,597

Amounts due from subsidiaries

P& W2 Y /B8 2 R RIR

1,062,679,769 1,167,461,5617

Less: Impairment loss J B EE (292,593,814) (292,593,814)
770,085,955 874,867,703
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHFY 8 A B3R IE (732,126,551) (657,448,855)

The amounts due from/(to)

subsidiaries are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries

as at 31 March 2014.

FE W,/ (RE AT ) B /88 & R SR 38 TY 8 3K

- RENERERERE -

R-ZE-—WF=A=1t—8 TZ2MH

BRABZHIRIT e

Form of Place of Principal activities Issued share capital/ Percentage of
Name husiness structure incorporation and place of operation paid-up registered capital  ownership interests held
B EBERKE  ERRILE TEXBRSENE BERE/AREMES FeERERERAM
directly indirectly
ER 1
Golden Island Bird's Nest Chiu Chau Limited liabiity ~Hong Kong Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of 100 -
Restaurant (Star House] Limited company in Hong Kong HK$10,000 and 240,000
deferred shares of
HK$24,000,000
LEREAMEE(2X ) ARAT RREEAT AR RERREER 100/:10,0008 7.2 EBHR
240,008 24,000,000 872
BRI
Golden Island (Management] Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Provision of management 10,000 ordinary shares of 100 -
company services to group HK$10,000
companies in Hong Kong
SR(ER)ARART BREART AR %EE}E%@%%% 10,000 10,0007 7.2 &%
L3NG

XA R A B R QA
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED



23. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

23. MBATZER®)

Form of Place of Principal activities Issued share capital/ Percentage of
Name husiness structure incorporation and place of operation paid-up registered capital  ownership interests held
B SRERPS  EREIE TEEBRLENE BRIRA/BRiERES FeERRRERAM
directly indirectly
Bi A
Hua Rong Sheng Shi Holding Limited Limited liability ~ The British Investment holding US$100 ordinary shares 100 -
company Virgin Islands in Hong Kong
[BVI")
Hua Rong Sheng Shi Holding Limited ~~ ERERAT  XERXES RERRERR 100572 &k
([#BRTES))
Welly Champ International Limited Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding 236.13 ordinary shares of %8 -
("Welly Champ”) (note 45(a), (b)) company in Hong Kong USS1 each
Welly Champ Interational Limited BRERLE  HERLES RERREER 236.13RBRAR 1%
(E2ERERLA)([BE) LERR
(Witase) - 1)
Wholly Gain Limited Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100 -
company in Hong Kong
2BERAT EREFAE  EERNES RERRERR \REEI XTI ERR
Win Castle Group Limited Limited liability BV Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100 -
. company in Hong Kong
BEEEARAR BREA RERNEE RERRERR \REE I ET 28R
Win Fame Limited Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding T ordinary share of USS 100 -
) company \ in Hong Kong
REERAT EREALE  EERRES REERBIER 1RER1 XTI ERR
Win Success Enterprises Limited Limited liability BV Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of 100 -
company in Hong Kong USST each
JEOFRRAT BREART  HBRLES REERERR 100REREE Zs BB
Wide Stand Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of 100 -
company in Hong Kong US$1 each
EURERAT BREMA AERRES RERRERR 100 RERAE 1 2 ERR
Wise Mark Group Limited Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding 1 ordinary share of USS! 100 -
. company \ in Hong Kong
AREEARAA RREERT  EERKER REERERR 1RERIZTZEER
Wave High Intemational Limited Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100 -
company in Hong Kong
KRERERAR BREART  AERLES HERRERR 1REE1 XTI ERR
Win Sea Group Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100 -
( company in Hong Kong
HEEERRAT BREART AR REERERR 1R AT Eak
Baron Productions and Artiste Limited liability  Hong Kong Music production and 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 - b1
Management Company Limited company artist management
] in Hong Kong
hERERENERARAT BREFRE  AA REBUSEEREREAER 100R100%2 K lk
Golden Capital Entertainment Company  Limited liability BV Investment holding 10 ordinary shares of - 100
Limited company in Hong Kong USS1 each
SURERBARLT EREART  EBRLES REBRALR 10RERERE 1% EER
—ZET-NFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

23. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. WEAR 2= #E)

Form of Place of Principal activities Issued share capital/ Percentage of
Name husiness structure incorporation and place of operation paid-up registered capital  ownership interests held
B SRERPS  EREIE TEXBRLENE BRIRA/BRiERES FaRARERAN
directly indirectly
Bi A
Golden Island Catering Group Company  Limited liabiity ~ Hong Kong Sale of food and 2 ordinary shares HKS2 100 -
Limited company beverages
SEHREEARAT EREfRE B4 HERR 2R2ET BRR
Golden Capital Entertainment Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of HKS1 - 100
company in Hong Kong
SHREERAR BRRALY B REERERR 1R BT ERR
Golden Island Bird's Nest Chiu Chau Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Property holding 12,000 ordinary shares of - 100
Restaurant (Causeway Bay) Limited company in Hong Kong HK$1,200,000
SEEEMEE(RRL)ARAT RREEAT A% REERRNR 12,0008 1,200,000 7.2
LR
Solid Sound Productions Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Music production and artist 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 - h
- company management in Hong Kong
THREESEERAT BREFLE  F% REEREEESEREAER 100R1008T2 EER
Media Sound Technology Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of HKS2 100 -
("Media Sound"] (note 45(c)) company in Hong Kong
BERRMARLA(GER ) Hdow) ERERLR  FE REERERR k2T ERR
Song Labs Co., Limited ("Song Labs") ~ Limited liability ~ PRC Intellectual property Renminbi (“RMB") - 100
(note 45(c)) company enforcement activities 56,250,000
in PRC
FRAEREEERIARAT EREFAT  #E RRENERAERGERE  ARE562500007T
([RERE |)(Ht 450)
Well Allied Investments Limited Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding 159.57 ordinary shares of - 64
("Wel Allied") company in Hong Kong USS1 each
SRREBRAR(5%E]) EREFAT  EERLES RERRERR 15957 REHER1 72
EER
hEER(FN)ERLA Foreign PRC Karaoke license fee RMB15,489,940 - 84
N enterprise collection business in PRC
TEER(RERLA SRR i RREESFIIOK AR 15,489,0407C
RiFEBRIERE
Witty Idea Finance Company Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Money leading business 1 ordinary share of HKS1 - 100
‘ company in Hong Kong
BUEEMHERAT BREART AR RNEBEHEER 11T EBR
Elite-China Cultural Development Limited ~ Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of - 60
l“EHw-anaW company \ in PRC HK$10,000
TEERNIARERDATESR]) EREALNE  FR IHERERR 10,000/ 10,0002 £B%
BREER\RMABEREFLE Foreign equity ~ PRC Property sub-leasing RIMB14,000,000 - 60
o Joint venture business in PRC )
HREER\BHRAREALT IMERERR  HE LR ESEGEES AR 14,000,000

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

B 15 8 & MY &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

23. MBATZER®)

Form of Place of Principal activities Issued share capital/ Percentage of
Name husiness structure incorporation and place of operation paid-up registered capital  ownership interests held
B SRERPS  EREIE TEEBRLENE BRIRA/BRiERES FaRARERAN
directly indirectly
E# A
BRRAREERERAA Limited liabiity ~ PRC Property sub-leasing RMB10,000,000 = 80
company husiness in PRC
HRRNRERRARAT BREfELR  4E NEEED S AR 10,000,007
HEnRYEELERD Limited liablity ~ PRC Sale of food and beverages  RMB1,000,000 = 100
company
KETEHHRRARAA RRERAE  4E RERR ARE1,0000007
BoRen Cultural Development Limited Limited liability ~ BVI Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100 -
company in PRC
B ERERAT BREART  HBRLES MEREER 1RER1 XTI ERR
China Resources Advertising & Exhibition ~ Limited fiability ~ Hong Kong Exhibition-related services 100,000 ordinary shares of 100 -
Company Limited company in Hong Kong HK$100,000
HEREREARAT ERERRA  BA RERRMRERBES 100,000% 10000072
LER
New Asia Media Development Limited ~ Limited liability BV Investment holding 1 ordinary share of USS1 100 -
("New Asia”) company
HONERERERAA(HEN]) BREMRE  EERXHS REER |\ REE 1 Fm ERR
AN EEBRAT("Tian He') Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB100,000,000 - 70
(note 43) transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in
PRC through a nationwide
Karaoke CMS and
investment holding
RaXtEBERAA(RE Hize) iE e FERALFHOKAR ARE100,0000007
ERZBNRERE
BEFLOKEHZR
ERGEERBRRARR
BRREERERAF hote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RIVBS,000,000 - %7
transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC
BRRAXIERERDANZL) i hE RERABERLOK ARE5,0000007
S RERHESRE
MIRE X ERBRAT (hote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB5,000,000 - 3.7
transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC
HIRA X ERERRANZ40) i e RpEREAEFILOK ARE5,000,0007
B RERFEERE
RERATCAR A hote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB2,000,000 - 3.7
transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC
RERAXLARAAMZ4) 8 E RREREABRIIOK AR 2,0000007
5 RER 7 E R
—ZET-NFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

23. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. WEAR 2= #E)

Form of Place of Principal activities Issued share capital/ Percentage of
Name husiness structure incorporation and place of operation paid-up registered capital  ownership interests held
B SRERPS  EREIE TEXBRLENE BRIRA/BRiERES FaRARERAN
directly indirectly
Bi A
FRRARET L ER R A Mote 43 Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 = BT
transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC
YRREFEAERARA B 4) A GG RhEREAEFOK ARH3,0000007
S RERHESRE
FERAFET I BEERA (note 43 Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RIB3,000,000 = 529
transactions settlement

services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

RERHEAXERARAAHE ) 4B hE RpEREAEFILOK ARE3,000,0007
SHRERSEE K
WERAtELEERR AR (note 43 Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 - 70

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

WRRAEEXERARARNZ4) 2B e RRERIEABRIIOK ARH3,0000007
S RERHEERE
BEAREEXERLR (hote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RIVIB3,000,000 - 529

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

BERAtENERRAMZL) %8 hE RERABERLOK ARE3,0000007
S RER AL ERE
LERATERER L (note 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 - 3.7
transactions settlement

services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

PERAXIBRERRANZ4) i e RenEREBERRLOK ARE3,0000007
SHRERSEE K
BEXRA W ARLA note 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 - 39

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

BERALIARAAME W) 8 E RnEREBERAOK ARE3,0000007T
FRERHEERE
HRA R ERARLA (note 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 - 367

transactions settlement

services relating to

karaoke venugs in PRC
BEREXMERERLAH4) yixc] hE NEEREBEFHOK AR3,000,0007T

S RER HEE RS

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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31 March 2014

. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. WE AR 2= &)

Form of Place of Principal activities Issued share capital/ Percentage of
Name husiness structure incorporation and place of operation paid-up registered capital  ownership interests held
B SRERPS  EREIE TEEBRLENE BRIRA/BRiERES FaRARERAN
directly indirectly
Bi A
MERAULERRE hote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 = BT
transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC
MERA X ERAR K 43) i e RhEREAEFOK ARH3,0000007T
S RERHESRE
BERABEL AR LT (note 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB2,000,000 = 3.7
transactions settlement

services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

BERAEENERR AN Z4) i e RenEREBERRLOK ARE2,0000007
SHRERSEE K
BERATENEEARAA ot 43)  Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 - 37

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

ERRALETIERERAA M) B hE ERER @FTOK AR3,000,0007T
B RERHEERE
EETRALUL AR ote 43 Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 - 532

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venugs in PRC

ERIRRELARD AN B hE RERABERLOK ARE3,0000007
SRR AEE R

BIIRA X AR AT hote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RIB3,000,000 - 35.1
transactions settlement

services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

BIXE X ERRA A 43) 8 e REERABERLOK ARE3,000,0007
S RER HEERE

WARXA I ERER LA note 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 - %7
transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC
WEXE X ERERAA M 43) %8 i RRERAEERLOK ARE3,0000007
FRERHEERE

SHRALENERRRAT Mote 43 Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 - &7
transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC
EERAURNLERRROA ) iR E RERABERLOK ARE3,000,0007
S RERHESRE

—ZET-NFFR
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31 March 2014

23. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. WEAR 2= #E)

Form of Place of Principal activities Issued share capital/ Percentage of
Name husiness structure incorporation and place of operation paid-up registered capital  ownership interests held
B SRERPS  EREIE TEXBRLENE BRIRA/BRiERES FaRARERAN
directly indirectly
Bi A
AR ERLR (hote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB2,000,000 = BT
transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC
ANREEENERRAHZL) i hE RMERABERILOK AR%2,0000007
S RERHESRE
EMRARAULERAA ote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RIB2,000,000 = 35.7
transactions settlement

services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

ENRABE XL ERR A2 ) i hE RpEREAEFILOK ARE2,000,0007
SHURERSEERE
HAXABE X EERRLA Mot 43)  Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB1,000,000 - 70

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

REASEAULERERARFi7) EE fE RRERAEERLOK AE%1,000,0007
S RER HEERE
EEXAIERAR (note 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB1,000,000 - 70

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venugs in PRC

EERAXILBRAA M 43) i hE RERABERLOK AR1,000,0007
SRR DS R

THERATET U ERA mote 43 Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RIB5,000,000 - 194
transactions settlement

services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

TERAFETUERD M) B hE RREREAEFILOK ARE5,000,0007
SHRERSEE K
TERAFET X ERA A hote 43 Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB2,000,000 - 3BT

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

IBRAFRTARAA M) 2B il RPEREBRFLOK ARH20000007C
FRERHEERE
EMNRARLERARLA (note 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 - 367

transactions settlement

services relating to

karaoke venugs in PRC
BNREXMERERDAHE4) yixc] hE NEEREBEFHOK AR3,000,0007T

S RER HEE RS

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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23. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. WE AR 2= &)

Form of Place of Principal activities Issued share capital/ Percentage of
Name husiness structure incorporation and place of operation paid-up registered capital  ownership interests held
B SRERPS  EREIE TEEBRLENE BRIRA/BRiERES FaRARERAN
directly indirectly
Bi A
HERAULERRE hote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB1,000,000 = %7
transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC
HERA X ARAR K 43) i e RhEREAEFOK AR%1,000,0007
S RERHESRE
BRERALE L BR LT (note 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RIB3,000,000 = 35.7
transactions settlement

services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

ERRA RN ERRANZ4L) i hE RpEREAEFILOK ARE3,000,0007
SHRERSEE K
HERAXAERRA note 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB1,000,000 - 70

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

HERAXLERAA M 43) piy] e MEREEERA OK AE%1,0000007
SRR AEERE
EERATAER A (note 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RIMB1,000,000 - 35.7

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venugs in PRC

BEREXIERRAMW T 43) %8 hE RERABERLOK ARE1,0000007
SRR AEE R

REEAA T ERAA hote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RIB3,000,000 - 35.7
transactions settlement

services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

ARERARIERAR Kt 43) B hE RREREAEFILOK ARE3,000,0007
SHRERSEE K
TXRAGIBERAE hote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RMB3,000,000 - %7

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venues in PRC

T RARTIERA W 43) %8 hE RRERAEERLOK ARE3,0000007
B RER AEERE
EOXATLERARAA hote 43) Corporation PRC Provision of copyright RIMB1,000,000 - 70

transactions settlement
services relating to
karaoke venugs in PRC
BORAXLERERAR W4 %8 hE REREEERH OK ARE1,000,0007T
SRR AEE R

—ZET-NFFR
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31 March 2014

28"

24.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 23. MBATZER®)
The above list includes the subsidiaries of the TREEEEREEAFEEEREERKN
Company which, in the opinion of the Directors, FERERAEBRERATHEEFELZ
principally affected the results for the year or RAGIMB AT - EFRAY|HH ALK
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of BRARZHBHESKRERANITE
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 24. BERNTF 2w
2014 2013
—E-0mOFE —=T—=fF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Share of net assets of associates DR E N A EEFE 31,236,379 37,745,060
Goodwill EE 52,529,798 52,529,798
Impairment loss recognised BHERAEEE (27,140,474) (27,140,474)
56,625,703 63,134,384

After the sale of 29% equity interest of CMF
to Eternity Investment Limited (“Eternity”), an
independent third party, in 2012, CMF and its
subsidiaries became associates of the Group.
Please refer to note 44(e) for further details.

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

MR- —FRBUE =TT KBERER
BRERAR([KERE ) HETHEEH
AR 29% AR - PRERTZERE
MEBARCKAAEBEZEBERT -
— S HEFES ML 440) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The carrying amount of interests in associates

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

24, BMENT 2R (B)
BANT 2 ENEEEEAEBR P E

represented the Group’s 45.95% equity interest EHFZEEBEITRMD 2 45.95% A&
in the issued shares of CMF. The details were as HIBWTR
follows:
Equity interest
Particulars attributable to
Name of  of issued Place of Place of Equity interest the owners
associate  shares held incorporation operation  Principal activities held by the Group of the Company
FEEE&IT
HENRER Ry 2FHE ERMRIBE Sy TEEH rEEREERE RARHERARERE
2014 2013 2014 2013
Z8-mE —T--F ZR-OF -—T-=%
CMF 505,649,726 Bermuda Hong Kong  Artist management and 45.95% 45.95% 45.95% 45.95%

ordinary shares

of HK$0.01 each
FEER  505640726% ERE X
e REE0.01ET

ZERR

production

R&{E

The above associate is accounted for using equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

CMF is a listed corporate entity whose quoted
market price is available. The fair value of
investment as at 31 March 2014 is HK$67,386,145
(2013: HK$67,386,145).

Summarised financial information of CMF, the
material associate, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed below:

film distribution and

BARERYRET

EatBg s N R TR A AR R A B
S E YN K

FREBEESE—EEMS®MEL LT
CEEE - R_ZT—NF=ZA=+—
H:#&E&QXF(EEFKG7,386,1458 7T
(ZZ—=% :67,386,145/87T) °
FREEZR(EABREQR) 2HBE
BREERSTRE AN EZRELH
B WHGEEMBEHRER CBREMESE -
WEOT

2014 2013

—E-lmFE —T—=fF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Current assets MENEE 51,431,775 60,346,594
Non-current assets EREBEE 30,096,256 31,961,772
Current liabilities mBaE (15,543,286) (12,157,072)
Equity MR 65,984,745 80,151,294
—E - FFR
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—E-E=A=+—H
31 March 2014

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

24, BMENT 2R (B)

2014 2013
—E-NFE —T—=fF
HK$ HK$
B BT
Revenue ON 9,342,259 27,795,976
Loss from continuing operations HEREEB2EBE 14,164,706 11,663,196
Post-tax loss from discontinued BRIEEB 2 BREEEE
operations - 3,038,886
Other comprehensive income HEt 2l — —
Total comprehensive expenses EERY B 14,164,706 14,702,082
Reconciled to the Group's interest in B E BN EHEETZS 2
CMF R 2 BIER
Goodwill GRS 26,305,711 26,305,711
Gross amounts of CMF's net assets FREESREEFERRE 65,984,745 80,151,294
Group's effective interest REBEERER 45.95% 45.95%
Group's share of CMF's net assets REE DGR EEHEZR
BESFE 30,319,992 36,828,673
Carrying amount in the consolidated RirE B mER 2 REE
financial statements 56,625,703 63,134,384

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The joint ventures, which were principally engaged
in the provision of copyright licence fees settlement
and collection services, were accounted for
using equity method in the consolidated financial
statements. Since the Group obtained control over
these entities on 11 January 2013 (see note 43),
these joint ventures became subsidiaries of the

Group.

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not
individually material:

B 3% 3R 3R B &
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=F-mF=A=1—7

25. B NTEZER
ABAT(FE

A+ —BEEE

31 March 2014

EERERERTERS
BRI ) A s
HRAR - EEEAKEIE’\\_ =
Bz ml(RH

AR W
_7£E_

it43) - E&E%f}?m ERAEKBEEE

pdi3)=FNC]

ERINEANE

BARZERHBE -

2013
—E—=fF
HK$
BT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually RERE SRR TERTENZ
immaterial joint ventures in the consolidated SEARIREAE
financial statements —
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of those AEEDIHZESE AR
joint ventures
Loss from continuing operation FIEL LTS 2 B8 (3,526,516)
Other comprehensive income H 2w —
Total comprehensive income EHKERE (3,526,516)
—ZET-NFFR

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

26. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 26.

AHEERE

2014 20§13
HK$ HK$
—E2-mFE —T—=
BT o
Listed securities in Hong Kong, at fair BEZ LTHES
value (note (a)) BRATEBEN (@) 101,333,932 75,318,757
Contingent consideration in related to ERAKEWNBARZ
acquisition of S ARAE (M52 (b))
subsidiaries (note (b)) 103,398,272 101,539,185
204,732,204 176,857,942
Notes: B
(a)  Available-for-sale investments at 31 March 2014 (a) MZE—WE=ZRA=1+—HzZA#H

represented 6.42% (2013: 12.27%) and 0.08%
(2013: 0.08%) equity interests in Cosmopolitan
International Holdings Limited (“Cosmopolitan”) and
Brockman Mining Limited (“Brockman”) held by the
Group respectively. Both companies are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. As at 31
March 2014, the carrying amounts of available-for-
sale investments in Cosmopolitan and Brockman
were HK$98,767,532 (2013: HK$72,303,237) and
HK$2,566,400 (2013: HK$3,015,520) respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, fair value
gains on the available-for-sale investments of the
Group amounted to HK$28,219,295 (2013: Nil)
was recognised in other comprehensive income
and fair value losses on the available-for-sale
investments of the Group amounted to HK$449,120
(2013: HK$10,571,5673) was recognised in other
comprehensive income and reclassified to profit or
loss as the Directors considered the decline in fair
value constituted objective evidence of impairment.

The fair values of listed equity investments are
based on quoted market prices.

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

EREENERDRIFAEMNEEERE
BERAR([MEREER D RMERE
EEERAR(MERE]) 26.42%
ZE— =4 :1227%) % 0.08% (=
T—ZF:0.08%)%E ZMEQ
AIHRBRFTERET - RZZF—Y
FZA=+—08 WEEBERHX
REZAHEEREZEEES A
498,767,632 (= T — = F:
72,303,237 7% T ) &% 2,566,400 JT
—Z—=4 :3,015,520/87T) °

HE-_ZT—NWFEF=ZA=+—BL1I*F
E AEBEZAHEEREATE
B U 28 % 28,219,296 T(Z T — =
FrE)EREMEERETER
mASERZAIHEERE 2 ATFEE
E 1B E449,1208 (=T — = F -
10,671,573 L) ERE 2 EaE+
BR TEF/IEZER RRARE
ERAENFEBEZRVERREZR
g

EHRAKREZ ATEEIRETS
WESH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

—ZT-—MNFE=A=1+—H
31 March 2014

26. JHHEERE®)

(Continued)

(o)  The contingent consideration in relation to (b) ﬁ%ﬁuﬁz,ﬁ\%ﬁ?}%@ﬁjz&%ﬁ{%%$
acquisition of subsidiaries was secured by 40% %WEQE?Z#&H?%EFB'F“
equity interests of Elite-China which was held CU'“K""' Development Limited #7452
by FeiFan Cultural Development Limited, a non- REBZRA0% B EEIT -
controlling interest of the Group’s subsidiaries.

The contingent consideration of RMB82,000,000 ﬁ%ﬁ”&ﬁ%m%_’/}ﬁzgiﬁiﬁ@gi\i
(equivalent to HK$103,398,272 as at 31 March 2014 #82,000,0007L (5 — % — M+ = A
and HK$101,539,185 as at 31 March 2013) related =+- Ejﬁ %775’31073,398,2727%7E 2
to acquisition of subsidiaries was valued at 31 E/Q\:%é*:%:_ﬂiJr*E'E'ME%ﬁf
March 2014 on option pricing model basis by APAC 101539'1857%75)7]%\:%3*E¢:
(2013: Savills), an independent professional valuer, )E]:Jr*iE'?ﬁﬁ@%i%%ﬁEEﬁiﬁx
and the fair value is not significantly different from <:§*:\¢ % ‘*zﬁiﬁéﬁ,ﬁﬁ)z,ﬁﬂ
the one measured at the date of acquisition. BEEEALEETHE HOFE
BEANEBRMGIEETERES

Bl o

27. DEFERRED EXPENDITURE 27. EERX
Group ARE

HK$
BT

Cost R

At 1 April 2012 RZZE——FH—H 233,009,153

Additions i 8,048,839

At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=F=A=+—8BxK

—E—=FMYH—H 241,057,992

Additions )i 3,844,412

At31 March 2014  R=F-WE=A=t-H 244,902,404

Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZE# 8 KRE

At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——F1A—H 216,735,511

Amortisation for the year R EHE 11,306,375

At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2014 R-E—=F=ZA=+—HK

—E-mMFEMA—H 228,041,886

Amortisation for the year I EHE 12,930,831

At 31 March 2014 RZZE-—MFE=A=+—H 240,972,717

Carrying amount REE

At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—NF=A=+—H 3,929,687

At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 13,016,106

—ZT-NEEFER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

27. DEFERRED EXPENDITURE (Continued) 27. IEIEBA R ()

yd

2014 2013

—EB-mFE _—_T—=
HK$ HK$
BT o

Shown in the consolidated statement of REGEABHBERAKRIITAE :

financial position as:

Deferred expenditure — current portion  #EIEFSL
(to be amortised within one year)
Deferred expenditure — non-current

portion

— REED
(R —FREH)
ERFX — JERB BN

3,929,687 9,825,808

— 3,190,298

3,929,687 13,016,106

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013,
the Group entered into cooperation agreements
with various copyright holders for the business of
collecting license fees from karaoke operators in
PRC for their use of licensed audio-visual works on
behalf of the copyright holders.

As a condition of the agreements, the Group
advanced the sum of HK$3,844,412 during the year
ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$8,048,839) to the
copyright holders as their guaranteed share of the
expected profit on license fees that will be earned.

The recoverable amount of the deferred expenditure
has been determined by the value-in-use calculation,
which was also used for the impairment testing of
goodwill in connection with the CGU of provision of
intellectual property enforcement services. Details
of the calculation are disclosed in note 21(a). At the
end of the reporting period, management of the
Group determined that there was no impairment of
the deferred expenditure as the recoverable amount
exceeded its carrying amount.

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

RBEE-_ZT-—NMNER-_FT—=F=A
=T HLEFE  AREEZZRERS
BARILAFIHE - RBBRAKKRMRE
A AT EZ R OKEER & A
BRFEZESFmARERERNEE
P2 555

ERZEHE 2 —BIEH  AEBERE
E_T-NEZA=Z+—RHIEFEBR
BB AN FIAS,844,4128 (=
T— =1 18,048,839 L)  tEFAKSE
RIS REBAZEZEMNZRES
B o

BERX 2 m B REREER
BABEE %t EATNBIERBREMEA
BEREERS 2 CCUZEERER
Ao FTEAFBERME21KE - 1
WEMKR > ARAIREERELERE
B BAREZEEEBEEELEMAY
ERE -
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28.

Bt % R MY A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED EXPENDITURE (Continued)

The Group has also committed to make further
payments to the copyright holders as their
guaranteed share of the expected profit on license
fees as follows:

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

27. BB (&)

REEE TR B AR A RAE R A AE — 51
o ERERREER CEHBENZR
ETRE BT

2014 2013
=F-mFE T =
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Year ended 31 March 2014 HE-_Z—NF
—A=+t—HILFE — 3,244,301
Year ended 31 March 2015 BHE-_LT—HF
—A=t+t—HBILFE 6,304,773 6,191,414
CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES 28. MR ERERE
2014 2013
—EF-mE T =F
HK$ HK$
BT o
Convertible loan notes issued by CMF FREEESRET S
MRERERE 3,569,000 4,449,740

On 22 February 2012, the Group acquired the
convertible loan notes with a principal amount of
HK$6,200,000 issued by CMF through unconditional
mandatory offer to acquire all of the outstanding
convertible loan notes issued by CMF. Since
cessation of elimination of convertible loan notes at
consolidation level due to disposal of CMF during
the year ended 31 March 2012, the convertible loan
notes was initial recognised as at 3 August 2012 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The convertible loan notes with a principal amount
of HK$6,200,000 with a term of three years from
25 September 2008 and zero coupon rate. The
convertible loan notes are convertible into shares of
CMF at the initial conversion price of HK$0.125 per
share at any time after the date of issue and before
maturity date.

RZE-—ZF-_AZ+Z8 FEES
MR AR R M A YR RS
ERBIZEEALBIBRRERE
B AREREEESRMBEIT AR
/46,200,000t 2 AT R E R FEE -
HREBE-_E——F=A=+—RHLF
EHEREEECREMERIENEHER
HERRERERE - I RREXER
MER ZE——F A=A GReH%
R o

N4 %8 /46,200,000 70 2 Al R E R
ZRZFHAE-_TETN\FALA=+EA
BT AH=F ZEAT - JHRRER
SRR T A B R B B A ATRE R IR
ML REEI0.126E T LB AT E
BEFERG -

—ZET-NFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued) 28. TRREREE &)

Pursuant to CMF’s circular dated 12 August 2009,
the terms and conditions of the convertible loan
notes were altered whereby the maturity date
shall be the fifth anniversary of the date of issue
instead of the third anniversary of the date of issue,
and there shall be a mandatory conversion of any
outstanding amount of convertible loan notes into
CMF's ordinary shares at HK$0.239 per share. As at
31 March 2013, the conversion price was HK$0.487
per share.

On 10 September 2013, CMF and New Asia,
the holder of the convertible loan notes with an
outstanding principal amount of HK$6,200,000
issued by CMF and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the second deed of
amendments (“Deed of Amendments”) to further
extend the maturity date of the convertible loan
notes for a term of 2 years from 24 September
2013 to 24 September 2015. Subject to the
fulfilment of conditions as set out in the Deed of
Amendments, the proposed amendment would
become effective on 24 September 2013 and New
Asia can exercise the conversion rights attaching
to the convertible loan notes on or before 24
September 2015.

As the proposed amendment was duly approved by
the independent shareholders of CMF at its special
general meeting on 23 October 2013, all conditions
as set out in the Deed of Amendments have been
fulfilled. Accordingly, the maturity date of the
convertible loan notes with an outstanding principal
amount of HK$6,200,000 as at 23 October 2013 has
been extended to 24 September 2015.

Details of the proposed amendment were more
particularly set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 10 September 2013 and 23 October
2013.

XA WIRRE AR A A
| CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED

REFEEEZEAHARTTAFN
ATZBz@k  ATHRRERER &
RRARHERER] - Bk - BIHIAER SR
TTEMERRF  MIFBTAPFE=R
F WERETKR0.239B T Z BB A
SBEMRIBRTREERRESER
TRERFACEER -R-FT—=F
ZR=1+—H #KRER/REM0.4878
5T o

RZZE—=FNA+H FEEEZE
EMEM(PEEREREITRLBRAR
& %8 /56,200,0008 70 2 Al R B R
BZHEBEARARAZEZENBAR)
RN B ZMEET RIBE(ERT22E]) - A
HARBREREB 2 HBHAR-Z—=
FANAZTHRE-—FTERE-T—
FAAZ+TMA - BEAMSF o FEF]R
BRTE R ERE - BREBFIHERZ
E—ZFNAAZTEBEER > MM
AR E—RAFAA-+HBERZATT
2 IR B R BRI 5 2 AR o

HRBZEITRFPEEESZENR-F
—=F+A-F+=ZABITZREEFRK
T EEEBYRRIERIE  BUESTR
BETE 2 FTE RSB ER - Bt - B
ZE—=Ft+AZt+-HBRABRAESE
46,200,000 8 L2 A MREFREE 2
FHECERE 2R FE LA -+
E| o

RAETZHEFRRAAAR T
—=FAA+TAR-B-=F 1A
—H=AHEZ A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

As the convertible loan notes are mandatorily
convertible at maturity, it is an equity instrument
which is designated as an available-for-sale financial
asset and measured at fair value. As at 31 March
2014, the convertible loan notes are classified as
non-current assets (2013: current assets) due to
extension of maturity date.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, fair
value loss on convertible loan notes of the
Group amounted to HK$880,740 (2013: Nil) was
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Following the completion of CMF Placement
(as defined in note 52(c)) on 17 June 2014, the
conversion price was adjusted from HK$0.487 to
HK$0.436 per share.

29. INVENTORIES

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

28. IRREREE#)

B A AT 2 i B R SR A 1 B B B 7 0 I L
B RBEESTHEEMBEE K
ATARBRRAFEEFE -R-_FT—N
FZA=1T—H aRFHELH &
THREREBRENERIRDEE
(ZF—=%: RPEE) °

HE-_Z—NF=ZA=+—BHLFE"
AEEZAMREFEBEATEBEIR
880,740 (=T —=F: B)ERNH
ftb 2 U o AP ERR o

RHEEECREEEE(ES R
B0 E=ZFE—HFEANATEATK
B HBMEBRERO4ASTBELHESE
0.43678 7T °

29. FE&

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—E-mE  —FT-=F
HKS$ HK$
B BT

Food and beverages
Artwork

Je iy
=

\
=t
=11
o

gd

21,197,222 25,585,378
12,252,597 6,540,044

33,449,819 32,125,422

—ZET-NFFR
ANNUAL REPORT 2014

yd



:

yd

B M ERME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E-WNE=F=+—8H
31 March 2014

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 30. EWER R HEMF
Group Company
REE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NE ZZT—=Ff ZE-OF =ZT—=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Amount due from a related U B E A R FUR
company (note (a)) (Bt (a) — 26,200,000 = ==
Impairment loss BREEE —  (26,200,000) = —
Trade debtors (note (b), (c)) FEW ST (M7 (b) ~(c)) 24,453,758 53,904,932 - —
Deposits, prepayments and Ze - BNRIEREAM
other receivables e RIR 36,695,425 75,037,655 2,070,239 2,787,733
Loan receivables (note (d)) U E K (H12E (d) 11,300,000 22,500,000 - —
Deposits for acquisition of WEME ARz Re
subsidiaries (note (e)) (K3t (e) 110,000,000 — 110,000,000 —
Deposit pledged for other RERHREMEE 2
borrowing (note 36(c)) Tk (A1 36(c)) 13,870,500 — - —
196,319,683 151,442,587 112,070,239 2,787,733
Notes: /}/jgéf .

(a)  Details of amount due from a related company of

the Group (before impairment loss) are as follows:

(a) MM EEREDBFRGIRRES
18R 2 FIBIT

Balance of the
outstanding
amount, before
impairment

REBERELR

(HBRBAEAT)

HK$

JETT

At 31 March 2014 » mWE=R=+—H —
At 1 April 2013 n= =FmA—H 26,200,000
Maximum balance outstanding during the year FRGRRAEBELS 26,200,000

XAEIRREBRA A

CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

ZF-mF=A=1"H
31 March 2014

30. ERERKR HAbFRIEA (4)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) ez - (&)
(a)  (Continued) (a) (#&)
Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 4 July 2007 BER-_ZTTLHFLAMNBHGA
between (i) Well Allied, a subsidiary of the Company; AEZ M B R BB EG)PLD
and (i) PLD International Company Limited (“PLD"), International Company Limited
Well Allied agreed to advance a loan of HK$9 million (TPLDD R 2 BRI # - BRERE
to PLD at the interest rate of 8% per annum and A PLD % ¥ & 39,000,000/ 7T M
repayable within 1 year from the date of the loan FHEBRE - ARNEXRGZERH
agreement. On 9 May 2008, Well Allied entered into BeF—FREE - R_TTN\FHA
another loan agreement with PLD and agreed to NH - BB EPIDII Y % — M E X
advance another loan of HK$17.2 million to PLD at i AERPLDEMNS —SFER
the interest rate of 5.26% per annum and repayable 17,200,000 7T * LASF I % 5.26% &t
within 1 year from the date of loan agreement. B ARERBGE B REF —FRNE
Two Directors of Well Allied, Mr. Lee Tien-Yung and RE MEBEERFHBEEREREK
Mr. Philip Lu Yueh-Wei, have beneficial interests in EENRPIDHEAED D ARM
PLD. As both of the loans were past due at March BEEFHUR-_ZTAF=ZA8Y &
2009, they were fully impaired as at 31 March 2010 ER-ZE-ZF=-_A=+—HZEM
and written off as at 31 March 2014. B IYR-_ZT—NF=ZRA=+—H0H#
8 o
(b) Included in trade and other receivables are trade (o) EERERNHEMFIABEEKE
debtors with the following ageing analysis as of the HRBEHRZREDITMOT
end of reporting period.
Group
REE
2014 2013
—EB-0F ==
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current (note (i) BUVERCHTEE (1) 17,764,097 28,131,248
Less than 1 month past due wmELR1EA 556,372 6,283,158
1 to 3 months past due W1 Z=31@A 5,087,326 63,088
4 to 12 months past due w4 =128 A 99,070 1,828,399
More than 12 months past due BE12E A A E 946,893 17,599,039
Amount past due at the end of reporting RIREHREBEE
period but not impaired (note (ii) KIBAE 2 FIB (M (1) 6,689,661 25,773,684
24,453,758 53,904,932
—ZET-NFFR

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-WMFE=RA=+—H

31 March 2014

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 30. BEWERRHMAKIE®)
(CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued) Biat - (&)
(b)  (Continued) o) (%)

Notes: Hiat -

(i)  The balances that were neither past due nor (i) AR B H SR B 2 A fR % B &
impaired relate to a wide range of customers MWEEREHCEPER -
for whom there was no recent history of
default.

(i)  The balances that were past due but not (i) EBaHERFRECEHESLE
impaired relate to number of customers that AEBBERTRHCEFER -

have good track record with the Group.

Based on past experience, management BIEATLR  EEREGRTTE
estimated that the carrying amounts of the ol w2 BREE -

balances past due could be fully recovered.

(i)  The Group generally grants no credit period (i) AEEB—RITeRERPERHE
to its customers, except for transactions with BH - MAREBRABRS R
customers in exhibition-related services, in T2 R G AER T /BN T
which credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days 30260 BT EZZEH -
is granted.

XA WIRRE AR A A
CULTURE LANDMARK INVESTMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on
invoice date after impairment loss is as follows:

—ZT-—MNFE=A=1+—H
31 March 2014

30. ERERKR HAbFRIEA (4)

Hret - (%)

(c) RUERRM